
 Planning Commission  
Sherry Brott, Chair 

Keith Corum, Vice Chair 
Llanira Valencia, Commissioner 

Cristina Ocampo, Commissioner 
Robyn Nygard, Commissioner 

 
City Planner  

Delainie Garlick 
 

City Clerk 
Karleen Price 

 
 
 

Willows Planning 
Commission Meeting 
 

August 5, 2025 
Willows City Hall 
6:00 PM  
 

201 North Lassen Street 
Willows, CA 95988 

(530) 934-7041 
Agenda 

 Watch online via Zoom: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83762900190    
Remote viewing of the Planning Commission meeting for members of the public is provided for convenience 
only. In the event that the remote viewing connection malfunctions for any reason, the Planning Commission 
reserves the right to conduct the meeting without remote viewing. 
 
If you have documents you would like to submit to the Planning Commission, please deliver or mail them to the 
City Planner at 201 North Lassen Street, Willows, CA 95988 or email it to: planning@cityofwillows.org .  
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. ROLL CALL 

4. CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT & CONSENT CALENDAR FORUM 
All items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be approved with a single vote unless 
removed for separate discussion by the Chair and Commissioners. Individuals wishing to speak on Consent items 
or matters not on the agenda are asked to complete a Speaker Card and submit it to the City Clerk. All remarks 
shall be directed to the Chair and Councilmembers and are limited to three minutes. By law, the Council cannot 
discuss or take action on items not listed on the posted agenda.  

a. Minutes Approval 
Recommended Action: Approve minutes of the July 1, 2025 Planning Commission Meeting. 

 Contact: Karleen Price, City Clerk, kprice@cityofwillows.org  
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING 
All matters in this section of the agenda are formal public hearings and will be acted on individually. Individuals 
wishing to speak on these items are asked to complete a Speaker Card and submit it to the City Clerk. Comments 
should be directed to the Chair and Commissioners and are limited to three minutes.  If you have any 
documentation that you would like distributed to the Council, please give it to the City Clerk for distribution. 
 

a. Cali Love LLC/Conditional Use Permit (File# CUP-25-01)/157 N. Butte St 
Recommended Action: Receive the staff report, attachments, discuss, and upon conclusion, 
consider approving the request for a Conditional Use Permit and adopting the attached 
resolution.  

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83762900190
mailto:planning@cityofwillows.org
mailto:kprice@cityofwillows.org


  
WILLOWS PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 2 

 

Contact: planning@cityofwillows.org 
 

b. WWCRS, Inc./Conditional Use Permit (File# CUP 25-02)/130 N. Butte St 
Recommended Action: Receive the staff report, attachments, discuss, and upon conclusion, 
consider approving the request for a Conditional Use Permit and adopting the attached 
resolution.  
Contact: planning@cityofwillows.org  
 

c. Sparks by Hilton Hotel / Design Review (File# DR-25-03) and Conditional Use Permit (File# 
CUP-25-03) / 457 N. Humboldt Avenue 
Recommended Action: Receive the staff report, attachments, discuss, and upon conclusion, 
consider approving the request for Design Review and Conditional Use Permit and adopting the 
attached resolution. 

 
7. COMMENTS & REPORTS 

a. Commission Comments & Reports 
b. Staff Comments & Reports 

 
8. ADJOURNMENT 

 

This agenda was posted on August 1, 2025. 

 
______________________________ 

Karleen Price, City Clerk  
 

A complete agenda packet, including staff reports and back-up information, is available for public inspection during normal work hours at City Hallr 
the Willows Public Library at 201 North Lassen Street in Willows or on the City’s website at www.cityofwillows.org. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Willows will make available to members of the public any special assistance 
necessary to participate in this meeting.  If requested, the agenda shall be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a 

disability, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132). The public should contact the City Clerk’s 
office at 934-7041 to make such a request.  Notification 72 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to 

ensure accessibility to this meeting. 

The City of Willows is an Equal Opportunity Provider  

mailto:planning@cityofwillows.org
mailto:planning@cityofwillows.org
http://www.cityofwillows.org/


PUBLIC COMMENT & 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

FORUM 



Planning Commission 
Llanira Valencia, Vice Chair 

Sherry Brott, Commissioner 
Keith Corum, Commissioner 

Cristina Ocampo, Commissioner 
Robyn Nygard, Commissioner 

Willows Planning Commission 
Action Meeting Minutes 
June 3, 2025 

1. CALL TO ORDER– 6:01 PM

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL
Commissioners Present:  Vice Chair Valencia, Commissioners Brott, Ocampo and Nygard
Commissioners Absent: Commissioner Corum

4. CHANGES TO THE AGENDA

5. PUBLIC COMMENT & CONSENT CALENDAR FORUM

Public Comment: Open 6:03PM, Close 6:03PM 

a. Minutes Approval
Action: Approved the minutes of the June 3, 2025, Planning Commission Meeting.

Moved/Seconded: Commissioner Nygard/Commissioner Brott
Yes: Vice Chair Valencia, Commissioners Brott, Ocampo and Nygard
No: None
Absent: Commissioner Corum
Abstain: None

6. PUBLIC HEARING

a. Cali Love LLC/Conditional Use Permit (File# CUP-25-01)/157 N. Butte St

b. WWCRS, Inc./Conditional Use Permit (File# CUP 25-02)/130 N. Butte St

Motion to Continue Items #6a and #6b to August 5, 2025, Planning Commission Meeting.

Moved/Seconded: Commissioner Brott/Commissioner Ocampo
Yes: Vice Chair Valencia, Commissioners Brott, Ocampo and Nygard
No: None
Absent: Commissioner Corum
Abstain: None

Agenda Item #5a



WILLOWS PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 2 

Vice Chair Valencia made a motion to pause the meeting due to technical issues. 

Moved/Seconded: Commissioner Brott/Commissioner Nygard 
Yes: Vice Chair Valencia, Commissioners Brott, Ocampo and Nygard 
No: None 
Absent: Commissioner Corum 
Abstain: None 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:08PM 

The meeting reconvened at 6:09PM 

c. Ionna EV/Design Review (File# DR-25-04)/246 N Humboldt Ave
Action: Adopted Resolution 10-2025 granting the design review approval of a new Electric (EV)
Charging Station for the property located at 246 N Humboldt Avenue, Assessor’s Parcel Number
001-041-024 within the Highway Commercial Zone.

Moved/Seconded: Commissioner Brott/Commissioner Nygard 
Yes: Vice Chair Valencia, Commissioners Brott, Ocampo and Nygard 
No: None 
Absent: Commissioner Corum 
Abstain: None 

7. DISCUSSION & ACTION CALENDAR

a. Election of Chair and Vice Chair
Action: Accepted nominations and elected a Chair and Vice Chair to preside over the
Planning Commission for the remainder of the 2025 calendar year.

Vice Chair Valencia nominated Commissioner Brott as Chair

Moved/Seconded: Vice Chair Valencia/Commissioner Nygard
Yes: Vice Chair Valencia, Commissioners Brott, Ocampo and Nygard
No: None
Absent: Commissioner Corum
Abstain: None

Commissioner Brott nominated Keth Corum as Vice Chair

Moved/Seconded: Vice Chair Brott/Commissioner Nygard



WILLOWS PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 3 

Yes: Vice Chair Valencia, Commissioners Brott, Ocampo and Nygard 
No: None 
Absent: Commissioner Corum 
Abstain: None 

8. COMMENTS & REPORTS
a. Commission Comments & Reports

i. Commissioner Brott welcomed Commissioner Nygard to the Planning Commission.

b. Staff Comments & Reports
i. Staff reminded the Commission that the Cannabis Conditional Use Permits have been

continued to the August 5, 2025, Planning Commission meeting. Staff advised the
Commission that a Hotel Expansion Design Review is pending for August 5, 2025.
Additionally, staff noted that a Wayfaring sign item will be brought before the Commission
for review prior to being forwarded to the City Council for discussion and action.

7. ADJOURNMENT – 8:19 PM

_______________________________ 
  Karleen Price, City Clerk 



PUBLIC HEARING

8



Agenda Item #6a 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

Date: August 5, 2025  

To: Planning Commission 

From: Delanie Garlick, Harris & Associates 

Joe Bettencourt, Community Development & Service Director 

Subject: Cali Love LLC/ Conditional Use Permit (File# CUP 25-01)/157 N. Butte St 

Recommendation: 
Receive the staff report, attachments, discuss, and upon conclusion, consider approving the request for 
a Conditional Use Permit and adopting the attached resolution.  

Rationale for Recommendation: 
This matter is before the Planning Commission pursuant to City of Willows Municipal Code (WMC) 
Chapter 9.20, Cannabis. 

Background & Process: 
City of Willows Cannabis Ordinance was recently amended to allow cannabis retail/dispensary 
businesses in the Central Commercial, General Commercial, and Light Industrial Zones with approval of 
a Conditional Use Permit (CUP). Previously, Cannabis retail businesses were not permitted in these 
zones. In May 2024, the new amendments to the ordinance reduced the setback requirements from 
schools to 600 feet and removed all setback requirements from churches, licensed daycares, 
playgrounds, and parks.  

The application process for a retail/dispensary cannabis business license consists of three phases: 
a. Preliminary application intended to confirm the eligibility and suitability of the applicant(s), as

determined in the sole discretion of the City of Willows (referred to as phase one);
b. Review of significant information about the proposed site of the business, proposed operations,

security and other detailed business operations (referred to as phase two); and
c. Final consideration and approval or disapproval by City Council (referred to as phase three).

If the city manager determines that phase one of the application is complete, and there appears to be 
no basis for denial of the permit, the city manager shall notify the applicant that it may continue to phase 
two in the application process. When the city manager has notified the applicant that the phase two 
application is accepted, the applicant shall apply for a CUP to be reviewed and decided by the Planning 
Commission. Lastly, when the city manager determines that phase two is complete, including the 

https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/Willows/#!/Willows09/Willows0920.html
https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/Willows/#!/Willows09/Willows0920.html


issuance of a CUP, the application shall be placed on the next available meeting agenda of the City 
Council. 

On March 5, 2025, phase one of the application process for the applicant, Cali Love LLC, was deemed 
complete by City of Willows, and the applicant was given directions to proceed to phase two (Attachment 
3). Phase two of the application process includes the request for a CUP to meet Zoning Code Compliance 
as outlined in WMC 9.20.071(2, (a)viii)). The CUP includes the required findings as outlined in WMC 
18.135.050 as well as the standards and conditions found in WMC 9.20.080. The general conditions for 
retail/dispensary cannabis licenses are incorporated into the Conditions of Approval (Attachment 2).  

Discussion & Analysis: 
The applicant, Cali Love LLC, is requesting a CUP as part of the phase two application process to operate 
a commercial retail cannabis dispensary in an existing 1,824 square foot building at 157 N. Butte Street, 
located within a Central Commercial zoning district. The Central Commercial district conditionally allows 
cannabis retail/dispensary business with a use permit pursuant to WMC Section 18.55.030(20) and 
pursuant to the development standards outlined in WMC Section 9.20.070 to 9.20.080, as defined in 
WMC Section 8.10.010. In addition to on-site sales, Cali Love LLC., Inc. will offer delivery of cannabis 
products in full compliance with all applicable state and local regulations. 

Table 1: Site Information 
Present Use & Development Vacant commercial tenant space within the existing commercial 

building. 
Access & Parking Direct access via Butte Street to the east. 

There is on-street parking along Butte Street, adjacent to the 
project site.  

Surrounding Use/Zoning North – Central Commercial (CG), commercial businesses.  
East – Central Commercial (CG), Butte Street then commercial 
businesses.  
West – Central Commercial (CG) and Residential/Professional (RP), 
commercial business then alley and residential single family. 
South – Central Commercial (CG), commercial businesses.  

Figure 1: Site and surrounding zoning 



The proposed location is within the appropriate zone district, Central Commercial, which conditionally 
allows a cannabis retail/dispensary. Additionally, the location of the business meets the setback 
regulations per Ordinance 760-2024, which took effect on February 12, 2025. The operator 
demonstrates compliance with the general provisions outline WMC 9.20.080 including but not limited 
to hours of operations, odor control measures, security measures, labeling and packaging, inspections, 
limits on sales, maintenance of licenses and insurance, and accounting of sales. 

The applicant provided all necessary application materials as detailed in the Cannabis Retail/Dispensary 
Phase Two Application Checklist including a detailed security plan, site plan, floor plan, accessibility 
evaluation, zoning code compliance, and demonstration of experience in the industry. The application 
materials demonstrate the applicant has met the provisions of the zoning compliance for a use permit 
to operate a cannabis retail/dispensary in the City of Willows (COA Attachment 1).  

Consistency Review: 
The proposed project is compatible with the surrounding existing and future land uses of the Central 
Commercial district, consistent with General Plan Policy LU-2a. The request for a CUP is consistent with 
policy LU-2f & LU-7a because it meets the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) and other applicable laws via categorical exemption 15301 (Existing Facilities). The proposed 
retail/dispensary will generate several full and part-time jobs in the Central Commercial district which 
meets the goals of policy LU 4.2 to support the continued development and intensification of 
employment opportunities throughout all non-residential areas. 

The proposed CUP for a cannabis retail/dispensary meets a number of the City Council’s 2024 priorities 
and goals. The council recognizes that new revenue is urgently needed to support essential services, 
infrastructure investments, and future development. This project meets Priority Goal #1 for financial 
stability by promoting investment and increased revenue through sales tax. The project also meets 
priority #2 for Economic Development as it is a new development within the city, it has the potential to 
contribute to economic growth. By creating jobs and attracting new businesses, the project can play a 

  Project Site  



significant role in contributing to the local economy through sales tax revenue and fostering a vibrant 
and diverse economy to help overcome economic stagnation and competition from other communities. 
Lastly, the proposed CUP is consistent with Priority #4 by encouraging community engagement as the 
project would offer an opportunity for public input and engagement, allowing residents to share their 
thoughts and concerns during a public hearing. Collaborating with local businesses and organizations can 
drive economic activity and foster a stronger sense of community. 

Environmental Review: 
The project is categorically exempt from the preparation of environmental documentation under the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Guidelines Section 15301 (Existing Facilities). 
The project is consistent with General Plan policies for the land use designation and is consistent with 
the applicable zoning designation and regulations. The project consists of the operation of a commercial 
business in an existing structure. The project site is not on a list of hazardous waste sites and does not 
contain a significant historical resource. The project site is an existing developed property served by 
required utilities and public services.  

Attachments: 
 Attachment 1: Resolution XX-2025
 Attachment 2: Conditions of Approval
 Attachment 3: Phase 1 Approval Letter
 Attachment 4: Cannabis Delivery Information



Attachment 1 

City of Willows  
Resolution XX-2025 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILLOWS GRANTING CONDITIONAL 
USE PERMIT APPROVAL OF A NEW RETAIL / DISPENSARY CANNABIS BUSINESS LICENSE (CUP 25-01) 

TO CALI LOVE WILLOWS, LLC FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 157 N BUTTE STREET, ASSESSORS 
PARCEL NUMBER 002-162-006 WITHIN THE CENTRAL COMMERCIAL ZONE 

WHEREAS, the applicant, CALI LOVE WILLOWS, LLC, has submitted an application for Conditional 
Use Permit approval to allow the operation of a new retail / dispensary cannabis business license; and  

WHEREAS, City of Willows Municipal Code Chapter 18.55.030 requires approval of a Conditional 
Use Permit for the operation of a cannabis retail / dispensary business; and   

WHEREAS, City of Willows Municipal Code Chapter 9.20.070 – 9.20.080 establishes processes 
and general conditions for retail / dispensary cannabis business licenses; and  

WHEREAS, notice of the Planning Commission meeting held on August 5, 2025, was published in 
a newspaper of general circulation in the City in accordance with law, and mailing to property owners 
within 300 feet were sent; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission did, on August 5, 2025 hold a public hearing to consider all 
public oral and written comments, letters and documents, staff reports, and all other documents and 
evidence which are a part of the Record; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission does find that the proposed project qualifies as a 
Categorical Exemption under Section 15301 (Class 1) pursuant to the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Willows Municipal Code Chapter 18.135.050, the following findings are 
made for the approval of a use permit:  

1) That the use is consistent with the purposes of the district in which the site is located.
Willows Municipal Code (WMC) Chapter 18.55.030(20) allows for cannabis retail /
dispensary business within the Central Commercial zone with approval of a conditional
use permit.

2) That the proposed location of the use and the conditions under which it may be operated
or maintained will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare or materially
injurious to properties or improvements in the vicinity.
The location of the cannabis retail / dispensary business would be in an existing
commercial building. Minor tenant improvements would be required. Conditions of
Approval outlined in WMC Chapter 9.20.080 including hours of operation, odor control
and security measures would be included in the project to ensure the business is operated



and maintained in a manner that is not detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare 
of those in the vicinity.  

3) That the proposed use is in conformance with the General Plan.
Commercial businesses are allowed within the land use designation of Central
Commercial.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission of the City of Willows does 
hereby find that the Conditional Use Permit to allow the operation of a retail / dispensary cannabis 
business license is consistent with the City of Willows Municipal Code and General Plan, and findings 
incorporated, and hereby approves Conditional Use Permit #CUP 25-01, subject to the attached 
conditions of approval. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Planning Commission of the City of Willows this 5th day of August 2025, 
by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

APPROVED: ATTESTED: 

Sherry Brott, Chair Karleen Price, City Clerk 



Attachment 2 

Conditions of Approval 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP 25-01)  

 For Retail / Dispensary Cannabis Business License 
157 N Butte Street /APN: 002-162-006 

Planning Commission Approval Date: August 5, 2025 

GENERAL 
(1) This Conditional Use Permit (CUP 25-01) allows for the operation of a cannabis retail / dispensary

cannabis business (Storefront Retailer). Storefront Retailer is defined as a licensee that owns or
operates a physical location where cannabis goods are sold directly to consumers. Storefront
retailers may also provide delivery services under the same license. the required license for a
Storefront Retailer is a Type 10 – Storefront Retailer (walk-in dispensary, with optional delivery)
license issued by the State of California. Any future proposal for Storefront Retailer related use,
such as delivery shall be subject to separate review and approval in accordance with applicable
zoning, licensing, and regulatory requirements.

(2) Prior to commencing business operations pursuant to a cannabis retail/dispensary business
license issued by the city of Willows, the applicant shall hold a certificate of authorization issued
by the City of Willows. Certificates of authorization shall be issued only to applicants who hold (a)
a retail/dispensary cannabis sales license issued by the City of Willows, (b) a use permit issued by
the city of Willows planning commission, and (c) California state-issued Type 10- Storefront
Retailer license.

(3) In the event of any conflict between the Conditions of Approval for CUP 25-01 and the State of
California (State) regulations, these Conditions of Approval shall prevail to the maximum extent
of the City’s legal authority; any provision for which the City lacks such authority shall defer to the
applicable State of California regulation.

(4) Where any system is referenced in Attachment 1 (Application Materials), the applicant shall install 
and use that system, and no deviation shall occur unless the City Manager authorizes a written
exemption. The installed system shall match make/model, specifications, design and other details
as described in Attachment 1. This includes but is not limited security systems, age verification
systems, lighting systems, odor control systems, tracking systems labeling and packaging
requirements, building plans and specifications and any other system as described in Attachment
1.

(5) Hours of Operation. All permitted Storefront Retailer business premises shall be closed to the
general public, including deliveries, shall be prohibited between the hours of 7:00 p.m. and 8:00
a.m. Transporter deliveries and pick-ups shall be prohibited between the hours of 7:00 p.m. and
8:00 a.m.

(6) Odor Control. Odors shall be contained on the property on which the commercial cannabis activity 
is located. If the city receives any odor complaints, the cannabis business shall work with the
building official or his designee to correct odor concerns. Unresolved or repeated odor complaints 
may be basis for suspension or revocation of the license or denial of license renewal.



(7) Business Conducted within Building. No production, distribution, storage, display or wholesale of
cannabis and cannabis-infused products shall be visible from the exterior of the building where
the commercial cannabis activity is being conducted.

(8) Security Measures. Maintain a commercial alarm monitoring system and video surveillance
system in accordance with local, state and federal regulations.

(9) Security Breach. A cannabis business shall notify the city and the Glenn County sheriff’s office
within 24 hours after discovering any of the following:

a. Diversion, theft, loss, or any criminal activity involving the cannabis or cannabis product
or any agent or employee of the permittee.

b. The loss or unauthorized alteration of records related to cannabis or cannabis product,
registered qualifying patients, primary caregivers or employees or agents.

c. Significant discrepancies identified during inventory.
d. Any other material breach of security.

(10) Labeling and Packages. Labels and packages of cannabis and cannabis products shall meet all state 
and federal labeling and packaging requirements.

(11) Inspection Records. Inspections, if necessary, shall take place at a reasonable time with prior
notice to the cannabis business. Notwithstanding the foregoing, upon reasonable suspicion of a
material violation of the law or the provisions of this code or the conditions of a license,
inspections may be made at any time, with or without prior notice. Upon request, the cannabis
business shall timely provide the city official with reports and records related to the business
including, but not limited to, sales reports, utility bills from the commercial energy provider for
the premises. This section shall not limit any inspection authorized under any other provision of
law or regulation.

(12) In addition to a retail/dispensary cannabis business license, obtain and maintain a business license
from the City of Willows.

(13) Maintain at all times commercial general liability insurance providing coverage at least as broad
as ISO CGL Form 00 01 on an occurrence basis for bodily injury, including death, of one or more
persons, property damage and personal injury with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence and comprehensive automobile liability (owned, nonowned, hired) providing
coverage at least as broad as ISO Form CA 00 01 on an occurrence basis for bodily injury, including
death, of one or more persons, property damage and personal injury, with limits of not less than
$1,000,000. The commercial general liability policy shall provide contractual liability, shall include
a severability of interest or equivalent wording, shall specify that insurance coverage afforded to
the city shall be primary, and shall name the city of Willows, its officials, employees and attorneys
as additional insured. Failure to maintain insurance as required herein at all times shall be grounds
for suspension of the license immediately, and ultimately, revocation.

(14) By accepting the license, each licensee agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless to the
fullest extent permitted by law the city of Willows, its officers, employees, attorneys, agents and
consultants from and against any and all actual and alleged damages, claims, liabilities, costs



(including attorney’s fees), suits or other expenses resulting from and arising out of or in 
connection with licensee’s operations, except such liability caused by the gross negligence or 
willful misconduct of city of Willows, its officers, employees, attorneys, agents and consultants. 

(15) Maintain for a minimum of three years a written accounting or ledger of all cash, receipts, credit
card and other financial transactions, and reimbursements (including any in-kind contributions)
as well as records of all operational expenditures and costs incurred by the licensee in accordance
with generally accepted accounting practices and standards typically applicable to business
records, which shall be made available to the city, its auditors or consultants during business hours 
for inspection upon reasonable notice by the city manager and for purposes of audit.

(16) Inform the city manager, in writing, of any change of or to any of the information submitted to
the city in phase one and phase two applications, any renewal application, or any amendments
thereto, within 10 days of any such change including, but not limited to, any change in ownership
of five percent or more in a single transaction or cumulatively.

(17) Notify the city manager within three days of any notices of violations or other corrective action
ordered by a state or other local licensing authority, and provide copies of the relevant
documents. [Ord. 745-19 § 6, 7-9-19; Ord. 736-17 § 7 (Exh. B), 11-28-17].

(18) Cannabis businesses that sell or manufacture edible cannabis products shall have a valid Glenn
County health permit. Permit holders shall comply with Health and Safety Code Section 13700 et
seq., and Glenn County Health Department permit requirements.

(19) Drive-through or walk-up window services are prohibited at all retail/dispensary cannabis
establishments in the City of Willows.

(20) An application for renewal of a retail/dispensary cannabis business license, together with all
applicable fees, must be submitted to the city manager at least 90 days before the expiration of
the then-current license. Failure to submit a renewal application at least 90 days prior to the
expiration date of the then-current license will result in the automatic expiration of the license on
the expiration date.

(21) A retail/dispensary cannabis business license is nontransferable to another person, entity or
location, and no such transfer may be made except in accordance with this section. Any such
transfer made without the prior consent of the city of Willows shall result in the revocation of the
license. Any change in ownership of five percent or more, singly or cumulatively, shall be
considered a “change in ownership” and constitute a “transfer” for purposes of this section.

(22) Whenever an enforcement officer has reason to believe that a nuisance exists or that an
inspection is necessary to enforce any provision of this chapter, the officer may enter the premises 
at any reasonable time to perform the inspection or any other duty imposed by this title. The
enforcement officer shall provide reasonable notice of the need to enter and inspect.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event there is reasonable suspicion of the existence of a
nuisance or violation that presents an immediate or imminent danger to the health, safety or
welfare of the employees of licensee, its customers or the community at large, the enforcement
officer or other city official may enter the premises at any time without notice.



a. The enforcement officer shall present proper identification, state the purpose of the visit
and request permission of the owner or responsible person to enter the premises. If entry
is refused, the enforcement officer shall have recourse to every remedy provided by law
to secure entry. Any such refusal shall be grounds for suspension of the licensee’s license.

b. When the enforcement officer has first obtained a proper inspection warrant or other
remedy provided by law to secure entry, no owner or responsible person shall fail or
neglect, after proper request is made as provided in this title, to promptly permit entry
therein by the enforcement officer for the purpose of inspection and examination
pursuant to this title. [Ord. 736-17 § 7 (Exh. B), 11-28-17]

(23) Electronic age verification will be utilized to verify the age and identity of any individuals
purchasing cannabis goods. Cannabis will not be sold to the public without electronic age
verification. Licensees shall ensure that no person less than 21 years of age is permitted to work
as an employee of the Storefront Retailer.

(24) Cannabis goods will only be received by the customer.

(25) On-site consumption of cannabis is prohibited at all times by all individuals on the property.

(26) No cannabis or cannabis products or graphics depicting cannabis or cannabis products will be
visible from the exterior of the business premises, or on any vehicles owned or used as part of the
business.

(27) The front entrance of the dispensary will have a secure lobby and no products will be visible within
this area.

(28) The entrance will maintain clear and legible notice, visibly posted stating that smoking, ingesting,
or otherwise consuming cannabis on the premises or in the areas adjacent to the commercial
cannabis business is prohibited. No loitering signage will be posted. All signage for the facility will
be submitted to the City of Willows for review including but not limited to signs required by local,
state and federal regulations, identifying signs and all additional signs visible to the public.

(29) The business, operator, or employees will not provide free cannabis or cannabis products to any
person and will abide by legal sales limits set by the Department of Cannabis Control.

(30) A current copy of the commercial cannabis business permit issued by the City and the State license 
will be posted inside the business premises in a location readily visible.

(31) That the applicant/developer shall enter into a Pass-Through Agreement with the City of Willows
to pay the cost of all planning review, plan checking and field inspection of this project.

(32) If the use is not made on the project subject to the permit within one (1) year after the date of
granting the permit, then without further action, the permit shall be null and void, and such use
shall not be made of the property except upon the granting of a new permit.

(33) All plans for additional uses, which are not covered by this review, shall be submitted to the City
Manager and Planning Commission for review and approval prior to use.



(34) All landscaping shall be maintained in good condition and any dead or dying plants, bushes, or
trees shall be replaced with new healthy stock of a size compatible with the remainder of the
growth at the time of replacement.

(35) The approval of this project shall be subject to the latest adopted Ordinances, Resolutions,
Policies and fees of the City of Willows and all state regulations

(36) All contractors/sub-contractors doing work on the project shall obtain a City business license prior 
to commencing operation. Facility shall operate in accordance with local laws.

(37) Changes in hours, days, or operating procedures must be reported to the Community
Development Department.

BUILDING DEPARTMENT 
(38) If you intend to construct, enlarge, alter, repair, move, demolish, or change the occupancy of the

building or structure or to erect, install, alter, repair, remove, convert, or replace any electrical,
gas, mechanical or plumbing system, the installation of which is regulated by code, or to cause
any such work to be done, you shall first make application for a building permit and obtain the
required permit for the development.

(39) Applicant shall submit a completed building permit application with detailed scope of work, 3
complete sets of plans, calculations, specifications, etc. for review. Appropriate plan review fees
shall be paid at the time of submittal.

(40) All work shall comply with current applicable Federal, State, local building codes and ordinances
and be shown on the plans submitted for building permit review.

(41) Conditions of approval shall be shown on the plans submitted for building permit review.

(42) Prior to issuance of a Building Permit for the construction of any structures on the site, a Final
Lighting Plan shall be submitted to the City and reviewed by the Engineer. The final lighting plan
shall include, but not limited to the following: (a) details regarding exterior lighting with lighting
sources that are full cut-off, hooded, and down-cast, or otherwise shielded to ensure that light
does adversely shine towards neighboring properties or toward the night sky, (b) lighting sources
with the minimum wattage necessary to provide adequate security without causing excessively
bright night glow, (c) sufficient details regarding the proposed wattage and area of coverage for
all site lights.

FIRE DEPARTMENT 
(43) All fire and security alarm systems must meet the approval of the Fire Chief per WMC Chapter

15.15.
(44) The Site shall be equipped with a Knox box holding a master key per WMC Chapter 15.15.

(45) Fire extinguishers shall be provided in accordance with the latest CFC.

(46) The building address shall meet all WMC Chapter 15.15. criteria and be reviewed and approved
by the Fire Department prior to installation. An illuminated address sign shall be provided for the
property.



(47) Provide illuminated exit signs over all exit doors in accordance with the latest CBC and CFC.

(48) All exit doors shall have no knowledge door locks, be posted “this door to remain unlocked when
building occupied” and swing in the direction of exit travel.

(49) All utility rooms will need to be identified by signage.

(50) A Pre-Fire Plan and Inspection will need to be completed before occupancy of the building.

(51) Regular Fire Department safety inspections shall occur annually.

GLENN COUNTY ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH DEPARTMENT 
(52) The applicant will need to plan check and obtain health/food permits from the Glenn County

Environmental Health Department. A copy of the permits shall be provided to the City as well as
renewals and any non-compliance issues



Karleen Price
Sticky Note
Completed set by Karleen Price











































































Karleen Price
Sticky Note
Completed set by Karleen Price





























































Karleen Price
Sticky Note
Completed set by Karleen Price



201 North Lassen • Willows, California 95988 • (530) 934-7041 • FAX (530) 934-7402 

City of Willows 
Joe Bettencourt 
Community Development and Services Department 
201 N. Lassen St. 
Willows, CA 95988 

May 4, 2025 

Cali Love Willows 
Attn: Melissa Wight and Stephen Sutton 
PO BOX 531 
Douglas City, CA 96024 

Subject: Additional Information Required for Phase 2 of the Cannabis Business License 
Application  

Dear Ms. Wight and Mr. Sutton, 

After reviewing your Phase 2 Cannabis Business License Application for 157 N. Butte St., we 
require additional information to proceed with the evaluation. Please provide the following 
documents and details no later than Wednesday May 14, 2025, at 2:00 p.m. 

1. Item 1: Security Plan –
a) The floor plan shows an ID check desk; however, it appears that this desk is not

in a separate room from where the cannabis products are sold. Is that correct? If
so, does this mean that visual observation by the security guard is the sole
method to prevent unauthorized access to the sales area?

2. Item 2: Floor Plan –

a) Identify the delivery and waste pickup locations, it is not shown on the
submitted site plan or floor plan.

b) The floor plan is very difficult to read, can an electronic version be provided or a
clearer hard copy?

c) Is the restroom employee only or open to the public?
d) Please describe the contents and offerings of the 'DRINKS' section."

3. Item 5: Neighborhood Context Map-  

a) Please update the map to illustrate a 600-foot setback radius and indicate 
whether any schools are located within this area.  



4. Item 6: Lighting Plan –

a) Will security lighting be installed on the building's exterior, particularly in areas
designated for deliveries?

5. Item 8: Insurance-  

a) An actual Certificate of Insurance needs to be provided, not just a quote. 

6. Item 11: Financial Viability-  

a) The 3-year proforma was not included, please provide and include information 
on employees (part time/full time, will they receive benefits, schedule for onsite 
manager(s)). 

b) The bank verification letter needs to show funds available for business startup,
please provide a verified fund amount.

Timely submission of clear and complete documents by the specified deadline is essential to 
continue processing your application. We appreciate your cooperation and look forward to 
receiving the requested information. 

Respectfully, 

Joe Bettencourt 
Community Development and Services Director 
City of Willows 

Karleen Price
Sticky Note
Completed set by Karleen Price

Karleen Price
Sticky Note
Completed set by Karleen Price

Karleen Price
Sticky Note
Completed set by Karleen Price



Karleen Price
Sticky Note
Completed set by Karleen Price

Karleen Price
Sticky Note
Completed set by Karleen Price

Karleen Price
Sticky Note
Completed set by Karleen Price



TV
C

E
PR

EM
IS

ES
 D

IA
G

R
A

M

Y
:\
1
5
0
0
-
1
5
9
9
\
1
5
2
0
_
W
ig
h
t_
2
 
b
e
d
ro
o
m
\
1
5
2
0
.0
6
_
1
5
7
 
N
 
B
u
tt
e
\
P
la
n
s\
1
5
2
0
.0
3
_
2
0
2
5
.0
5
.0
8
.d
w
g
, 
TV
C
E
, 
In
c
.,
 
TV
C
E
, 
In
c
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHIRTS/MERCHANDISE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECK IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRINKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMPLOYEE ONLY BATHROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECURE STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECURITY OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTAKE ROOM SECURE OFFICE & PRODUCT STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARBON FILTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAFE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAFE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAFE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C3

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C4

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
C5

AutoCAD SHX Text
C6

AutoCAD SHX Text
C9

AutoCAD SHX Text
C8

AutoCAD SHX Text
C7

AutoCAD SHX Text
C12

AutoCAD SHX Text
C15

AutoCAD SHX Text
C14

AutoCAD SHX Text
C16

AutoCAD SHX Text
C13

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENTRANCE/EXIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
55'

AutoCAD SHX Text
76'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEATING/WAITING AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'-8 "12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-9 "12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOREFRONT WINDOWS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
76'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C10

AutoCAD SHX Text
C11

AutoCAD SHX Text
360 CAMERA 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
360 CAMERA 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
360 CAMERA 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMITED ACCESS AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTITION WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREMISES BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANNABIS RETAIL AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SALES COUNTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTER/DISPLAY CASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMPLOYEE ENTRANCE/EXIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX TRAVEL DISTANCE <70'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOOR & THRESHOLD SHALL MEET ADA COMPLIANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ID CHECK AT DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELIVERY & WASTE PICKUP LOCATED @ REAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREMISES DIAGRAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHK BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DES BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
APP BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE OF ISSUE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRINITY VALLEY CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
67 WALNUT WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PO BOX 1567

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLOW CREEK, CA 95573

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE (530) 629-3000

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX (530) 629-3011

AutoCAD SHX Text
C01

AutoCAD SHX Text
1520.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAY 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
E. KEYES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TVCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLENN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
MELISSA WIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
A. DOMINICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
APN: 002-162-006-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
145 N BUTTE ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E. KEYES

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLOWS, CA. 95988 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREMISES DIAGRAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOORS, DOORWAYS AND GATES THAT ARE PART OF AN ACCESSIBLE ROUTE SHALL COMPLY WITH SECTION 11B-404. EXCEPTIONS: DOORS, DOORWAYS AND GATES DESIGNED TO BE OPERATED ONLY BY SECURITY PERSONNEL SHALL NOT BE REQUIRED TO COMPLY WITH SECTIONS 11B-404.2.7, 11B-404.2.8, 11B-404.2.9, 11B-404.3.2 AND 11B-404.3.4 THROUGH 11B-404.3.7. A SIGN VISIBLE FROM THE APPROACH SIDE COMPLYING WITH SECTION 11B-703.5 SHALL BE POSTED STATING "ENTRY RESTRICTED AND CONTROLLED BY SECURITY PERSONNEL".

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOORS, DOORWAYS AND GATES THAT ARE PART OF AN ACCESSIBLE ROUTE SHALL COMPLY WITH SECTION 11B-404. EXCEPTIONS: DOORS, DOORWAYS AND GATES DESIGNED TO BE OPERATED ONLY BY SECURITY PERSONNEL SHALL NOT BE REQUIRED TO COMPLY WITH SECTIONS 11B-404.2.7, 11B-404.2.8, 11B-404.2.9, 11B-404.3.2 AND 11B-404.3.4 THROUGH 11B-404.3.7. A SIGN VISIBLE FROM THE APPROACH SIDE COMPLYING WITH SECTION 11B-703.5 SHALL BE POSTED STATING "ENTRY RESTRICTED AND CONTROLLED BY SECURITY PERSONNEL".

TVCE
Callout
retractable crowd control stanchion

TVCE
Line

TVCE
Oval

TVCE
Callout
POTTED TREE

Karleen Price
Sticky Note
Completed set by Karleen Price

Karleen Price
Sticky Note
Completed set by Karleen Price

Karleen Price
Sticky Note
Completed set by Karleen Price

Karleen Price
Sticky Note
Completed set by Karleen Price

Karleen Price
Sticky Note
Completed set by Karleen Price

Karleen Price
Sticky Note
Completed set by Karleen Price

Karleen Price
Sticky Note
Completed set by Karleen Price

Karleen Price
Sticky Note
Completed set by Karleen Price

Karleen Price
Sticky Note
Completed set by Karleen Price

Karleen Price
Sticky Note
Completed set by Karleen Price

Karleen Price
Sticky Note
Completed set by Karleen Price

Karleen Price
Sticky Note
Completed set by Karleen Price

Karleen Price
Sticky Note
Completed set by Karleen Price

Karleen Price
Sticky Note
Completed set by Karleen Price

Karleen Price
Sticky Note
Completed set by Karleen Price

Karleen Price
Sticky Note
Completed set by Karleen Price

Karleen Price
Sticky Note
Completed set by Karleen Price

Karleen Price
Sticky Note
Completed set by Karleen Price

Karleen Price
Sticky Note
Completed set by Karleen Price

Karleen Price
Sticky Note
Completed set by Karleen Price

Karleen Price
Sticky Note
Completed set by Karleen Price



TV
C

E
PR

O
PE

R
TY

 D
IA

G
R

A
M

 

‐

Y
:\
1
5
0
0
-
1
5
9
9
\
1
5
2
0
_
W
ig
h
t_
2
 
b
e
d
ro
o
m
\
1
5
2
0
.0
6
_
1
5
7
 
N
 
B
u
tt
e
\
P
la
n
s\
1
5
2
0
.0
3
_
2
0
2
5
.0
5
.0
8
.d
w
g
, 
TV
C
E
, 
In
c
.,
 
TV
C
E
, 
In
c
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREMISES AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NON-CANNABIS) COMMERCIAL/RETAIL BUILDINGS SURROUNDING PREMISES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE ACCESS WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC ACCESS WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREMISES ENTRANCE/EXIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY ENTRANCE/EXIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREMISES BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREMISES ENTRANCE/EXIT EMPLOYEE ACCESS ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELIVERY & WASTE PICKUP LOCATED @ REAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY DIAGRAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR MELISSA WIGHT 145 N BUTTE ST. WILLOWS, CA. 95988

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY DIAGRAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
APN: 002-162-006-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHK BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DES BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
APP BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE OF ISSUE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRINITY VALLEY CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
67 WALNUT WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PO BOX 1567

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLOW CREEK, CA 95573

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE (530) 629-3000

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX (530) 629-3011

AutoCAD SHX Text
C00

AutoCAD SHX Text
1520.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAY 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
E. KEYES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TVCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLENN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
MELISSA WIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
A. DOMINICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
APN: 002-162-006-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
145 N BUTTE ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E. KEYES

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLOWS, CA. 95988 

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT LOCATION WILLOWS, CA. 95988

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL ROOMS AND AREAS WHERE CANNABIS OR CANNABIS PRODUCTS ARE STORED OR HELD SHALL BE CONSIDERED A LIMITED ACCESS AREA (LAA) AND CAN ONLY BE ACCESSIBLE TO AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESS NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
A BOUNDARY SURVEY WAS NOT CONDUCTED NOT CONDUCTED  CONDUCTED BY TVCE. ALL PROPERTY COMPONENTS DEPICTED ON THESE PLANS REFLECT APPROXIMATE LOCATIONS BASED ON RECORD DATA.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEY NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
SETBACK REQUIREMENTS FROM SENSITIVE USES

AutoCAD SHX Text
A RETAIL CANNABIS FACILITY SHALL NOT BE LOCATED WITHIN A 1,000 FOOT RADIUS OF; A CHURCH, FOOT RADIUS OF; A CHURCH, ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, MIDDLE SCHOOL, HIGH SCHOOL, LICENSED DAY CARE OR PRESCHOOL FACILITY, PLAYGROUND OR PARKS, THAT ARE IN EXISTENCE AT THE TIME THE LICENSE IS ISSUED. IN ADDITION, A RETAIL FACILITY SHALL NOT BE LOCATED WITHIN ONE‐HUNDRED (100) FEET OF A RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT. THE DISTANCE SPECIFIED SHALL BE HUNDRED (100) FEET OF A RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT. THE DISTANCE SPECIFIED SHALL BE MEASURED FROM THE PROPERTY LINE OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FROM: WILLOWS, CA 95988 HEADING SOUTH ON I-5 TAKE EXIT 603 FOR CA-162 TOWARD WILLOWS OROVILLE 0.2 MI TURN LEFT ONTO CA-162/BIGGS-WILLOWS RD/ W WOOD ST 1.1 MI TURN RIGHT ONTO N BUTTE ST DESTINATION WILL BE ON THE RIGHT 0.2 MI ARRIVE: 157 N BUTTE ST WILLOWS, CA 95988

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERAL NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
162

AutoCAD SHX Text
162

AutoCAD SHX Text
306

AutoCAD SHX Text
I-5

AutoCAD SHX Text
I-5

AutoCAD SHX Text
162

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
162

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEHAMA

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUTTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLUSA

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MENDOCINO

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRINITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SCHOOLS ARE LOCATED WITHIN A 600FT RADIUS AROUND THE PREMISE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEIGHBORHOOD CONTEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
500

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
250

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEIGHBORHOOD MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=250'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=250'



JBettencourt
Text Box

JBettencourt
Text Box
Neighborhood Context Map (Question #3)

JBettencourt
Text Box



TV
C

E
ZO

N
IN

G
  D

IA
G

R
A

M

http://www.despacho-virtual.com/
http://www.despacho-virtual.com/
http://www.despacho-virtual.com/
http://www.despacho-virtual.com/
http://www.despacho-virtual.com/
http://www.despacho-virtual.com/
http://www.despacho-virtual.com/
http://www.despacho-virtual.com/
http://www.despacho-virtual.com/
http://www.despacho-virtual.com/
AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY DIAGRAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHK BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DES BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
APP BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE OF ISSUE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRINITY VALLEY CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
67 WALNUT WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PO BOX 1567

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLOW CREEK, CA 95573

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE (530) 629-3000

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX (530) 629-3011

AutoCAD SHX Text
C02

AutoCAD SHX Text
1520.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAY 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
E. KEYES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TVCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLENN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
MELISSA WIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
A. DOMINICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
APN: 002-162-006-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
145 N BUTTE ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E. KEYES

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLOWS, CA. 95988 

AutoCAD SHX Text
600 SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SCHOOLS ARE LOCATED WITHIN A 600FT RADIUS AROUND THE PREMISE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEIGHBORHOOD CONTEXT

JBettencourt
Text Box



JBettencourt
Text Box

JBettencourt
Text Box
Lighting Plan (Question #4)

JBettencourt
Text Box



TV
C

E
LI

G
H

TI
N

G
 D

IA
G

R
A

M

Y
:\
1
5
0
0
-
1
5
9
9
\
1
5
2
0
_
W
ig
h
t_
2
 
b
e
d
ro
o
m
\
1
5
2
0
.0
6
_
1
5
7
 
N
 
B
u
tt
e
\
P
la
n
s\
1
5
2
0
.0
3
_
2
0
2
5
.0
5
.0
8
.d
w
g
, 
TV
C
E
, 
In
c
.,
 
TV
C
E
, 
In
c
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHK BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DES BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
APP BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE OF ISSUE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRINITY VALLEY CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
67 WALNUT WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PO BOX 1567

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLOW CREEK, CA 95573

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE (530) 629-3000

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX (530) 629-3011

AutoCAD SHX Text
C01.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1520.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAY 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
E. KEYES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TVCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLENN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
MELISSA WIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
A. DOMINICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
APN: 002-162-006-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
145 N BUTTE ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E. KEYES

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLOWS, CA. 95988 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHTING DIAGRAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHTS & WATTS: TOTAL WATT LIGHTS: LIGHT WATTS/SQUARE FOOT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
22 LED @ 40W EA. 880W 880W / 1,785SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVERAGE LIGHT WATTS PER SQUARE FOOT = 0.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHTING DIAGRAM NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL KEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
$

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARD-WIRED 110V SMOKE DETECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
w/ BATTERY BACK-UP INTERCONNECTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
d

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEILING-MNT. LIGHT FIXTURE (MAY BE SUSPENDED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL-MNT. FIXTURE / WALL SCONCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARD-WIRED 110V SMOKE DETECTOR /

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARBON MONOXIDE COMBO w/ BATTERY BACK-UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
C/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECESSED /CAN LIGHT FIXTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEILING SURFACE MOUNTED LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) TUBE 4' LED

AutoCAD SHX Text
120V DUPLEX CONVENIENCE RECEPTACLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
240V RANGE /DRYER RECEPTACLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEDICATED HOOD RECEPTACLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEDICATED REF'R. /DW RECEPTACLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUST BE INTERCONNECTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PENDANT LIGHT FIXTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTDOOR SECURITY WALL-MNT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOLAR LIGHT FIXTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 50 CFM ENERGY STAR RATED EXHAUST FAN, 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUCTED TO EXTERIOR; BATH FANS MUST BE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROLLED BY A HUMIDISTAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUST BE IC RATED FOR DIRECT CONTACT OF INSULATION AND BE AIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIGHT TO PRECLUDE INFILTRATION FROM ATTIC INTO CONDITIONED SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
IF APPLICABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
dimmer

AutoCAD SHX Text
DED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
120V DUPLEX CONVENIENCE RECEPTACLE (4 gang)

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDER CABINET RECEPTACLE STRIP & LIGHTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
os

AutoCAD SHX Text
occupant sensor

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEILING SURFACE MOUNTED LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(4) TUBE 4' LED



JBettencourt
Text Box

JBettencourt
Text Box
Insurance Certificate (Question #8)

JBettencourt
Text Box





JBettencourt
Text Box

JBettencourt
Text Box
Additional Phase 2 Follow-Up Email 



JBettencourt
Text Box



Cali Love Willows City of Willows Phase 2 Cannabis License 
Application Additional Follow Up Questions 

1. Provided

2. We will be open approximately 4 to 6 months after receiving approval from the City
of Willows. It takes approximately 3-6 months to obtain a state license from the
DCC if done correctly. We typically run our licensing concurrently, applying for the
city/county and state license at the same time. Since this is a competitive bid, we
are waiting for final approval before we apply for the State license, hence a 4-6
month timeline for opening day.

3. While another similar business may be located across the street, we do not
consider them direct competition. Our business has exclusive agreements with
multiple award-winning vendors, including premium cultivators and Melissa's
world-class cannabis from the Emerald Triangle, ensuring a unique product
selection that is unavailable elsewhere in the area.

In addition to our curated cannabis offerings, our location includes a distinctive art
gallery environment that enhances the customer experience and further
differentiates us in the market. The business across the street does not offer this
type of atmosphere or product mix.

As a result, their presence does not impact our financial projections, proforma, or
strategic positioning. Our partnerships, curated selection, and elevated retail
experience position us uniquely in the local market.

4. We will allow online orders for in person pickup and delivery through our e-
commerce website. Yes, we would like to offer delivery as well. We will use
Progressive auto insurance as they are the only cannabis delivery insurance provider
in the state. Deliveries will occur during business hours only and must return during
business hours and before closing per DCC regulations. All deliveries must be
delivered to a physical address per DCC regulations. Delivery drivers will carry
physical receipts for each individual order and Metrc manifests documenting
products being transported for sale. Our driver will verify identification upon delivery



to ensure customer is over the age of 21 and products are being delivered to the 
correct person who placed said order. All products will be transported in a locked 
container that will only be opened when deliveries are made. A gps tracking device 
will accompany our delivery driver recording delivery routes for records purposes 
per DCC regulations. All deliveries will be in compliance with all DCC regulations 
15415 -15421. 



JBettencourt
Text Box
Delivery Information



Cali Love Willows Cannabis Delivery Procedures 

We will allow online orders for in person pickup and delivery through our e-commerce 
website. We will use Progressive auto insurance as they are the only cannabis delivery 
insurance provider in the state. Deliveries will occur during business hours only and must 
return during business hours and before closing per DCC regulations. Furthermore, 
deliveries will not occur between 7pm and 8am to comply with City of Willows Code. All 
deliveries must be delivered to a physical address per DCC regulations. Delivery drivers will 
carry physical receipts for each individual order and Metrc manifests documenting products 
being transported for sale. Our driver will verify identification upon delivery to ensure 
customer is over the age of 21 and products are being delivered to the correct person who 
placed said order. All products will be transported in a locked container that will only be 
opened when deliveries are made. A gps tracking device will accompany our delivery driver 
recording delivery routes for records purposes per DCC regulations. All deliveries will be in 
compliance with all DCC regulations 15415 -15421. DCC Delivery Regulations are attached 
for clarity. 

§15415. Delivery Employees. (a) All deliveries of cannabis goods shall be performed
by a delivery employee who is directly employed by a licensed retailer. (b) Each delivery 
employee of a licensed retailer shall be at least 21 years of age. (c) All deliveries of cannabis 
goods shall be made in person. A delivery of cannabis goods shall not be made through the 
use of an unstaffed vehicle. (d) Deliveries of cannabis goods shall be received by customers 
only during the hours of operation established by section 15403. Delivery employees shall 
return to the licensed premises after making their last delivery of the day if they have any 
unsold cannabis goods to return to the premises. (e) During the process of delivery, the 
licensed retailer’s delivery employee may not engage in any activities except for cannabis 
goods delivery and necessary rest, fuel, or vehicle repair stops. (f) A delivery employee of a 
licensed retailer shall, during deliveries, carry a copy of the retailer’s current license, a copy 
of the QR Code certificate issued by the Department, which complies with section 15039, 
subsection (d), the employee’s government-issued identification, and an identification 
badge provided by the employer pursuant to section 15043. A delivery employee shall 
provide a copy of the retail license, a copy of the QR Code certificate, and their employee 
identification badge to a delivery customer upon request. (g) Prior to providing cannabis 
goods to a delivery customer, a delivery employee shall confirm the identity and age of the 
delivery customer as required by section 15404 and ensure that all cannabis goods sold 
comply with requirements of section 15413. (h) A licensed retailer shall maintain an 



accurate list of the retailer’s delivery employees and shall provide the list to the Department 
upon request. Authority cited: Section 26013, Business and Professions Code. Reference: 
Sections 26070 and 26090, Business and Professions Code. §15415.1. Deliveries Facilitated 
by Technology Platforms. (a) A licensed retailer or licensed microbusiness shall not sell or 
otherwise transfer any cannabis goods to a customer through the use of an unlicensed third 
party, intermediary business, broker, or any other business or entity. Medicinal and Adult Use 
Cannabis Regulations Revised April 1, 2025 116 (b) Notwithstanding subsection (a) of this 
section, a licensed retailer or licensed microbusiness may contract with a service that 
provides a technology platform to facilitate the sale and delivery of cannabis goods, in 
accordance with all of the following: (1) The licensed retailer or licensed microbusiness does 
not allow for delivery of cannabis goods by the technology platform service provider. (2) The 
licensed retailer or licensed microbusiness does not share in the profits of the sale of 
cannabis goods with the technology platform service provider, or otherwise provide for a 
percentage or portion of the cannabis goods sales to the technology platform service 
provider. (3) The licensed retailer or licensed microbusiness shall not advertise or market 
cannabis goods in conjunction with the technology platform service provider, outside of the 
technology platform, and shall ensure that the technology platform service provider does 
not use the licensed retailer's or licensed microbusiness's license number or legal business 
name on any advertisement or marketing that primarily promotes the services of the 
technology platform. (4) The licensed retailer or licensed microbusiness shall ensure the 
following information is provided to customers: (A) Any cannabis goods advertised or offered 
for sale on or through the technology platform shall disclose, at a minimum, the licensed 
retailer's or licensed microbusiness's legal business name and license number. (B) 
Customers placing an order for cannabis goods through the technology platform shall be 
able to easily identify the licensed retailer or licensed microbusiness that each cannabis 
good is being ordered or purchased from. This information shall be available to the customer 
prior to the customer placing an order or purchasing the cannabis goods. (5) All required 
sales invoices and receipts, including any receipts provided to the customer, shall disclose, 
at a minimum, the licensed retailer's or licensed microbusiness's legal business name and 
license number. (6) All other delivery, marketing, and advertising requirements under this 
division are complied with. Authority cited: Section 26013, Business and Professions Code. 
Reference: Sections 26001, 26070, 26090, 26151 and 26152, Business and Professions 
Code.  

§15416. Delivery to a Physical Address. (a) A delivery employee may only deliver
cannabis goods to a physical address in California. (b) A delivery employee shall not leave 
the State of California while possessing cannabis goods. Medicinal and Adult Use Cannabis 
Regulations Revised April 1, 2025 117 (c) A delivery employee shall not deliver cannabis 



goods to an address located on publicly owned land or any address on land or in a building 
leased by a public agency. This prohibition applies to land held in trust by the United States 
for a tribe or an individual tribal member unless the delivery is authorized by and consistent 
with applicable tribal law. (d) A delivery employee may deliver to any jurisdiction within the 
State of California provided that such delivery is conducted in compliance with all delivery 
provisions of this division. (e) A delivery employee shall not deliver cannabis goods to a 
school providing instruction in kindergarten or any grades 1 through 12, day care center, or 
youth center. Authority cited: Section 26013, Business and Professions Code. Reference: 
Sections 26070 and 26090, Business and Professions Code.  

§15417. Delivery Vehicle Requirements. (a) A licensed retailer’s delivery employee,
carrying cannabis goods for delivery, shall only travel in an enclosed motor vehicle. Any 
vehicle used in the delivery of cannabis goods shall be operated by a delivery employee of 
the licensee. A vehicle used in the delivery of cannabis goods shall not have any marking or 
other indications on the exterior of the vehicle that may indicate that the delivery employee 
is carrying cannabis goods for delivery. Only the licensee or an employee of the retailer 
licensee for whom delivery is being performed shall be in the delivery vehicle. (b) While 
carrying cannabis goods for delivery, a licensed retailer’s delivery employee shall ensure the 
cannabis goods are not visible to the public. Cannabis goods shall be stored in a secure, fully 
enclosed trunk that cannot be accessed from inside the vehicle, or in a secured area or 
compartment within the interior of the vehicle. A “secured area” is defined as an area where 
solid or locking metal partitions, cages, or high-strength shatterproof acrylic can be used to 
create a secure compartment in the fully enclosed vehicle. The secured area may be 
comprised on three sides by any part of the body of the vehicle, provided the parts of the 
vehicle used for the purposes of this section are shatterproof and are not made of glass. (c) 
A licensed retailer’s delivery employee shall not leave cannabis goods in an unattended 
motor vehicle unless the motor vehicle is locked and equipped with an active vehicle alarm 
system. Any cannabis goods left in an unattended vehicle must be stored in a container as 
required in subsection (b). (d) A vehicle used for the delivery of cannabis goods shall be 
outfitted with a dedicated Global Positioning System (GPS) device for identifying the 
geographic location of the delivery vehicle and recording a history of all locations traveled to 
by the delivery employee while engaged in delivery. A dedicated GPS device must be owned 
by the licensee and used for delivery only. The device shall be either permanently or 
Medicinal and Adult Use Cannabis Regulations Revised April 1, 2025 118 temporarily affixed 
to the delivery vehicle and shall remain active and inside of the delivery vehicle at all times 
during delivery. At all times, the licensed retailer shall be able to identify the geographic 
location of all delivery vehicles that are making deliveries for the licensed retailer and 
document the history of all locations traveled to by a delivery employee while engaged in 



delivery. A licensed retailer shall provide this information to the Department upon request. 
The history of all locations traveled to by a delivery employee while engaging in delivery shall 
be maintained by the licensee for a minimum of 90 days. (e) Upon request, a licensed retailer 
shall provide the Department with information regarding any motor vehicle used for the 
delivery of cannabis goods, including the vehicle’s make, model, color, Vehicle Identification 
Number, license plate number and Department of Motor Vehicles registration information. 
(f) Any motor vehicle used by a licensed retailer to deliver cannabis goods is subject to
inspection by the Department. Vehicles used to deliver cannabis goods may be stopped and
inspected by the Department at any licensed premises or during delivery. Authority cited:
Section 26013, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 26070 and 26090,
Business and Professions Code.

§15418. Cannabis Goods Carried During Delivery. (a) A licensed retailer's delivery
employee shall not carry cannabis goods in the delivery vehicle with a value in excess of 
$10,000 at any time. (b) For the purposes of this section, the value of cannabis goods shall 
be determined using the current retail price of all cannabis goods carried by, or within the 
delivery vehicle of, the licensed retailer's delivery employee. (c) A delivery employee may 
only carry cannabis goods, cannabis accessories, branded merchandise of any licensee, or 
promotional materials in the delivery vehicle and may only perform deliveries for one 
licensed retailer at a time. A delivery employee must depart and return to the same licensed 
premises before taking possession of any cannabis goods from another licensee to perform 
deliveries. (d) Before leaving the licensed premises, the licensed retailer's delivery employee 
must have a delivery inventory ledger of all cannabis goods provided to the licensed retailer's 
delivery employee. The contents of the delivery inventory ledger must comply with the 
requirements of section 15049.3. During the delivery trip, as defined in section 15049.3, the 
delivery employee shall maintain the delivery inventory ledger in hard copy or electronically, 
the latter of which may be an electronic copy maintained in the track and trace system. The 
delivery inventory ledger must be updated after each completed delivery to reflect the 
remaining inventory carried by the delivery employee. The delivery inventory ledger must 
otherwise be updated in accordance with the requirements of section 15049.3, and then 
entered into the track Medicinal and Adult Use Cannabis Regulations Revised April 1, 2025 
119 and trace system no later than the end of the calendar day on which the delivery trip 
occurred. (e) The licensed retailer's delivery employee shall maintain a log that includes all 
stops from the time the licensed retailer's delivery employee leaves the licensed premises 
to the time that the licensed retailer's delivery employee returns to the licensed premises, 
and the reason for each stop. The log shall be turned in to the licensed retailer when the 
licensed retailer's delivery employee returns to the licensed premises. The licensed retailer 
must maintain the log as a commercial cannabis activity record as required by this division. 



The log may be maintained electronically. (f) Prior to arrival at any delivery location, the 
licensed retailer must have received a delivery request from the customer and provided the 
delivery request receipt to the licensed retailer's delivery employee electronically or in hard 
copy. The delivery request receipt provided to the licensed retailer's delivery employee shall 
contain all of the information required in section 15420, except for the date and time the 
delivery was made, and the signature of the customer. (g) Immediately upon request by the 
Department or any law enforcement officer, the licensed retailer's delivery employee shall 
provide: (1) The delivery inventory ledgers from the time the licensed retailer's delivery 
employee left the licensed premises up to the time of the request; (2) All delivery request 
receipts for cannabis goods carried by the delivery employee, in the delivery vehicle, or any 
deliveries that have already been made to customers; and (3) The log of all stops from the 
time the licensed retailer's delivery employee left the licensed premises up to the time of the 
request. (h) If a licensed retailer's delivery employee does not have any delivery requests to 
be performed for a 30-minute period, the licensed retailer's delivery employee shall not 
make any additional deliveries and shall return to the licensed premises. Required meal 
breaks shall not count toward the 30-minute period. (i) Upon returning to the licensed 
premises, all undelivered cannabis goods shall be returned to the licensed retailer’s 
inventory and recorded within the track and trace system in accordance with section 
15049.3. Authority cited: Section 26013, Business and Professions Code. Reference: 
Sections 26067, 26068, 26070, 26090 and 26160, Business and Professions Code.  

§15419. Cannabis Consumption During Delivery. A licensed retailer’s delivery
employees shall not consume cannabis or cannabis products while delivering cannabis 
goods to customers. Authority cited: Section 26013, Business and Professions Code. 
Reference: Sections 26070 and 26090, Business and Professions Code. Medicinal and Adult 
Use Cannabis Regulations Revised April 1, 2025 120  

§15420. Delivery Request Receipt. A licensed retailer shall prepare a hard copy or
electronic delivery request receipt for each delivery of cannabis goods. (a) The delivery 
request receipt shall contain the following: (1) The legal business name and license number 
of the licensed retailer; (2) The first name and employee number of the licensed retailer's 
delivery employee who delivered the order; (3) The first name and employee number of the 
licensed retailer's employee who prepared the order for delivery; (4) The first name of the 
customer and a licensed retailer-assigned customer number for the person who requested 
the delivery; (5) The date and time the delivery request was made; (6) The delivery address; 
(7) A detailed description of all cannabis goods requested for delivery. The description shall
include the weight, volume, or any other accurate measure of the amount of all cannabis
goods requested; (8) The total amount paid for the delivery, including any taxes or fees, the
cost of the cannabis goods, and any other charges related to the delivery; and (9) Upon



delivery, the date and time the delivery was made, and the handwritten or electronic 
signature of the customer who received the delivery. (b) At the time of the delivery, the 
delivery employee of the retailer shall provide the customer who placed the order with a hard 
or electronic copy of the delivery request receipt. The delivery employee shall retain a hard 
or electronic copy of the signed delivery request receipt for the licensed retailer's records. 
(c) For the purposes of this section, an employee number is a distinct number assigned by a
licensed retailer to an employee that would allow the licensed retailer to identify the
employee in documents or records using the employee number rather than the employee's
full name. A licensed retailer shall be able to identify the employee associated with each
employee number upon request from the Department. (d) For the purposes of this section,
a customer number is a distinct number assigned by a licensed retailer to a customer that
would allow the licensed retailer to identify the customer in documents or records using the
customer number rather than the customer's full name. A licensed retailer shall be able to
identify the customer associated with each customer number upon request from the
Department. Authority cited: Section 26013, Business and Professions Code. Reference:
Sections 26070, 26090 and 26160, Business and Professions Code. Medicinal and Adult Use
Cannabis Regulations Revised April 1, 2025 121

§15421. Delivery Route. While making deliveries of cannabis goods, a licensed
retailer's delivery employee shall only travel from the retailer's licensed premises to the 
delivery address; from one delivery address to another delivery address; or from a delivery 
address back to the retailer's licensed premises. A delivery employee of a licensed retailer 
shall not deviate from the delivery path described in this section, except for necessary rest, 
fuel, or vehicle repair stops, or because road conditions make continued use of the route 
unsafe, impossible, or impracticable. Authority cited: Section 26013, Business and 
Professions Code. Reference: Sections 26070 and 26090, Business and Professions Code. 



201 North Lassen • Willows, California 95988 • (530) 934-7041 • FAX (530) 934-7402 

City of Willows 
Joe Bettencourt 
Community Development and Services Director 
201 N. Lassen St. 
Willows, CA 95988 

March 21, 2025 

Cali Love Willows 
Attn: Melissa Wight and Stephen Sutton 
PO BOX 531 
Douglas City, CA 96024 

Subject: Approval of Phase 1 Cannabis Business License Application – Eligibility for Phase 2 

Dear Ms. Wight and Mr. Sutton, 

We are pleased to inform you that your Phase 1 Cannabis Business License Application for 157 
N. Butte St. has been approved. As a result, you are now eligible to submit a Phase 2 application
for further review and consideration.

As part of the Phase 2 application process, please ensure that you provide all required items.  
We have provided a sample table of contents as Attachment 1 to this letter. Please number all 
pages and reference them in the table of contents. Timely submission of these materials is 
essential to ensure the continued processing of your application. Please ensure all documents 
are clear, complete, and submitted within the specified timeframe. 

Should you require any clarification, please do not hesitate to reach out to 
planning@cityofwillows.org. We appreciate your cooperation and look forward to receiving 
your Phase 2 application. 

Joe Bettencourt 
Community Development and Services Director 
City of Willows 

Attachment 3

mailto:planning@cityofwillows.org


Cannabis Business License Phase 2 Application 

Table of Contents 

1. Security Plan………………………………………………………………………………………Page 1-11 

2. Floor Plan…………………………………………………………………………………………. Page 12-16 

3. Site Plan ……………………………………………………………………………………………Page 17 

4. Accessibility Plan………………………………………………………………………………..Page 18-19 

5. Neighborhood Context Map……………………………………………………………….…Page 20 

6. Lighting Plan………………………………………………………………………………….……Page 21-24 

7. Zoning Code Compliance……………………………………………………………....…….Page 25 

8. Insurance………………………………………………………………………………….….……Page 26

9. Fiscal………………………………………………………………………………………………...Page 27-29

10. Experience…………………………………………………………………………………….… Page 30-32

11. Financial Viability………………………………………………………………………….……Page 33 

12. City Authorization………………………………………………………………………….……Page 34 

13. Reporting and Audit……………………………………………………………………….……Page 35-42 

14. Applicants Certification………………………………………………………………….……Page 43 

JBettencourt
Text Box
Attachment 1

JBettencourt
Text Box

JBettencourt
Text Box



Cali Love Willows Cannabis Delivery Procedures 

We will allow online orders for in person pickup and delivery through our e-commerce 
website. We will use Progressive auto insurance as they are the only cannabis delivery 
insurance provider in the state. Deliveries will occur during business hours only and must 
return during business hours and before closing per DCC regulations. Furthermore, 
deliveries will not occur between 7pm and 8am to comply with City of Willows Code. All 
deliveries must be delivered to a physical address per DCC regulations. Delivery drivers will 
carry physical receipts for each individual order and Metrc manifests documenting products 
being transported for sale. Our driver will verify identification upon delivery to ensure 
customer is over the age of 21 and products are being delivered to the correct person who 
placed said order. All products will be transported in a locked container that will only be 
opened when deliveries are made. A gps tracking device will accompany our delivery driver 
recording delivery routes for records purposes per DCC regulations. All deliveries will be in 
compliance with all DCC regulations 15415 -15421. DCC Delivery Regulations are attached 
for clarity. 

§15415. Delivery Employees. (a) All deliveries of cannabis goods shall be performed
by a delivery employee who is directly employed by a licensed retailer. (b) Each delivery 
employee of a licensed retailer shall be at least 21 years of age. (c) All deliveries of cannabis 
goods shall be made in person. A delivery of cannabis goods shall not be made through the 
use of an unstaffed vehicle. (d) Deliveries of cannabis goods shall be received by customers 
only during the hours of operation established by section 15403. Delivery employees shall 
return to the licensed premises after making their last delivery of the day if they have any 
unsold cannabis goods to return to the premises. (e) During the process of delivery, the 
licensed retailer’s delivery employee may not engage in any activities except for cannabis 
goods delivery and necessary rest, fuel, or vehicle repair stops. (f) A delivery employee of a 
licensed retailer shall, during deliveries, carry a copy of the retailer’s current license, a copy 
of the QR Code certificate issued by the Department, which complies with section 15039, 
subsection (d), the employee’s government-issued identification, and an identification 
badge provided by the employer pursuant to section 15043. A delivery employee shall 
provide a copy of the retail license, a copy of the QR Code certificate, and their employee 
identification badge to a delivery customer upon request. (g) Prior to providing cannabis 
goods to a delivery customer, a delivery employee shall confirm the identity and age of the 
delivery customer as required by section 15404 and ensure that all cannabis goods sold 
comply with requirements of section 15413. (h) A licensed retailer shall maintain an 

Attachment 4



accurate list of the retailer’s delivery employees and shall provide the list to the Department 
upon request. Authority cited: Section 26013, Business and Professions Code. Reference: 
Sections 26070 and 26090, Business and Professions Code. §15415.1. Deliveries Facilitated 
by Technology Platforms. (a) A licensed retailer or licensed microbusiness shall not sell or 
otherwise transfer any cannabis goods to a customer through the use of an unlicensed third 
party, intermediary business, broker, or any other business or entity. Medicinal and Adult Use 
Cannabis Regulations Revised April 1, 2025 116 (b) Notwithstanding subsection (a) of this 
section, a licensed retailer or licensed microbusiness may contract with a service that 
provides a technology platform to facilitate the sale and delivery of cannabis goods, in 
accordance with all of the following: (1) The licensed retailer or licensed microbusiness does 
not allow for delivery of cannabis goods by the technology platform service provider. (2) The 
licensed retailer or licensed microbusiness does not share in the profits of the sale of 
cannabis goods with the technology platform service provider, or otherwise provide for a 
percentage or portion of the cannabis goods sales to the technology platform service 
provider. (3) The licensed retailer or licensed microbusiness shall not advertise or market 
cannabis goods in conjunction with the technology platform service provider, outside of the 
technology platform, and shall ensure that the technology platform service provider does 
not use the licensed retailer's or licensed microbusiness's license number or legal business 
name on any advertisement or marketing that primarily promotes the services of the 
technology platform. (4) The licensed retailer or licensed microbusiness shall ensure the 
following information is provided to customers: (A) Any cannabis goods advertised or offered 
for sale on or through the technology platform shall disclose, at a minimum, the licensed 
retailer's or licensed microbusiness's legal business name and license number. (B) 
Customers placing an order for cannabis goods through the technology platform shall be 
able to easily identify the licensed retailer or licensed microbusiness that each cannabis 
good is being ordered or purchased from. This information shall be available to the customer 
prior to the customer placing an order or purchasing the cannabis goods. (5) All required 
sales invoices and receipts, including any receipts provided to the customer, shall disclose, 
at a minimum, the licensed retailer's or licensed microbusiness's legal business name and 
license number. (6) All other delivery, marketing, and advertising requirements under this 
division are complied with. Authority cited: Section 26013, Business and Professions Code. 
Reference: Sections 26001, 26070, 26090, 26151 and 26152, Business and Professions 
Code.  

§15416. Delivery to a Physical Address. (a) A delivery employee may only deliver
cannabis goods to a physical address in California. (b) A delivery employee shall not leave 
the State of California while possessing cannabis goods. Medicinal and Adult Use Cannabis 
Regulations Revised April 1, 2025 117 (c) A delivery employee shall not deliver cannabis 



goods to an address located on publicly owned land or any address on land or in a building 
leased by a public agency. This prohibition applies to land held in trust by the United States 
for a tribe or an individual tribal member unless the delivery is authorized by and consistent 
with applicable tribal law. (d) A delivery employee may deliver to any jurisdiction within the 
State of California provided that such delivery is conducted in compliance with all delivery 
provisions of this division. (e) A delivery employee shall not deliver cannabis goods to a 
school providing instruction in kindergarten or any grades 1 through 12, day care center, or 
youth center. Authority cited: Section 26013, Business and Professions Code. Reference: 
Sections 26070 and 26090, Business and Professions Code.  

§15417. Delivery Vehicle Requirements. (a) A licensed retailer’s delivery employee,
carrying cannabis goods for delivery, shall only travel in an enclosed motor vehicle. Any 
vehicle used in the delivery of cannabis goods shall be operated by a delivery employee of 
the licensee. A vehicle used in the delivery of cannabis goods shall not have any marking or 
other indications on the exterior of the vehicle that may indicate that the delivery employee 
is carrying cannabis goods for delivery. Only the licensee or an employee of the retailer 
licensee for whom delivery is being performed shall be in the delivery vehicle. (b) While 
carrying cannabis goods for delivery, a licensed retailer’s delivery employee shall ensure the 
cannabis goods are not visible to the public. Cannabis goods shall be stored in a secure, fully 
enclosed trunk that cannot be accessed from inside the vehicle, or in a secured area or 
compartment within the interior of the vehicle. A “secured area” is defined as an area where 
solid or locking metal partitions, cages, or high-strength shatterproof acrylic can be used to 
create a secure compartment in the fully enclosed vehicle. The secured area may be 
comprised on three sides by any part of the body of the vehicle, provided the parts of the 
vehicle used for the purposes of this section are shatterproof and are not made of glass. (c) 
A licensed retailer’s delivery employee shall not leave cannabis goods in an unattended 
motor vehicle unless the motor vehicle is locked and equipped with an active vehicle alarm 
system. Any cannabis goods left in an unattended vehicle must be stored in a container as 
required in subsection (b). (d) A vehicle used for the delivery of cannabis goods shall be 
outfitted with a dedicated Global Positioning System (GPS) device for identifying the 
geographic location of the delivery vehicle and recording a history of all locations traveled to 
by the delivery employee while engaged in delivery. A dedicated GPS device must be owned 
by the licensee and used for delivery only. The device shall be either permanently or 
Medicinal and Adult Use Cannabis Regulations Revised April 1, 2025 118 temporarily affixed 
to the delivery vehicle and shall remain active and inside of the delivery vehicle at all times 
during delivery. At all times, the licensed retailer shall be able to identify the geographic 
location of all delivery vehicles that are making deliveries for the licensed retailer and 
document the history of all locations traveled to by a delivery employee while engaged in 



delivery. A licensed retailer shall provide this information to the Department upon request. 
The history of all locations traveled to by a delivery employee while engaging in delivery shall 
be maintained by the licensee for a minimum of 90 days. (e) Upon request, a licensed retailer 
shall provide the Department with information regarding any motor vehicle used for the 
delivery of cannabis goods, including the vehicle’s make, model, color, Vehicle Identification 
Number, license plate number and Department of Motor Vehicles registration information. 
(f) Any motor vehicle used by a licensed retailer to deliver cannabis goods is subject to
inspection by the Department. Vehicles used to deliver cannabis goods may be stopped and
inspected by the Department at any licensed premises or during delivery. Authority cited:
Section 26013, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 26070 and 26090,
Business and Professions Code.

§15418. Cannabis Goods Carried During Delivery. (a) A licensed retailer's delivery
employee shall not carry cannabis goods in the delivery vehicle with a value in excess of 
$10,000 at any time. (b) For the purposes of this section, the value of cannabis goods shall 
be determined using the current retail price of all cannabis goods carried by, or within the 
delivery vehicle of, the licensed retailer's delivery employee. (c) A delivery employee may 
only carry cannabis goods, cannabis accessories, branded merchandise of any licensee, or 
promotional materials in the delivery vehicle and may only perform deliveries for one 
licensed retailer at a time. A delivery employee must depart and return to the same licensed 
premises before taking possession of any cannabis goods from another licensee to perform 
deliveries. (d) Before leaving the licensed premises, the licensed retailer's delivery employee 
must have a delivery inventory ledger of all cannabis goods provided to the licensed retailer's 
delivery employee. The contents of the delivery inventory ledger must comply with the 
requirements of section 15049.3. During the delivery trip, as defined in section 15049.3, the 
delivery employee shall maintain the delivery inventory ledger in hard copy or electronically, 
the latter of which may be an electronic copy maintained in the track and trace system. The 
delivery inventory ledger must be updated after each completed delivery to reflect the 
remaining inventory carried by the delivery employee. The delivery inventory ledger must 
otherwise be updated in accordance with the requirements of section 15049.3, and then 
entered into the track Medicinal and Adult Use Cannabis Regulations Revised April 1, 2025 
119 and trace system no later than the end of the calendar day on which the delivery trip 
occurred. (e) The licensed retailer's delivery employee shall maintain a log that includes all 
stops from the time the licensed retailer's delivery employee leaves the licensed premises 
to the time that the licensed retailer's delivery employee returns to the licensed premises, 
and the reason for each stop. The log shall be turned in to the licensed retailer when the 
licensed retailer's delivery employee returns to the licensed premises. The licensed retailer 
must maintain the log as a commercial cannabis activity record as required by this division. 



The log may be maintained electronically. (f) Prior to arrival at any delivery location, the 
licensed retailer must have received a delivery request from the customer and provided the 
delivery request receipt to the licensed retailer's delivery employee electronically or in hard 
copy. The delivery request receipt provided to the licensed retailer's delivery employee shall 
contain all of the information required in section 15420, except for the date and time the 
delivery was made, and the signature of the customer. (g) Immediately upon request by the 
Department or any law enforcement officer, the licensed retailer's delivery employee shall 
provide: (1) The delivery inventory ledgers from the time the licensed retailer's delivery 
employee left the licensed premises up to the time of the request; (2) All delivery request 
receipts for cannabis goods carried by the delivery employee, in the delivery vehicle, or any 
deliveries that have already been made to customers; and (3) The log of all stops from the 
time the licensed retailer's delivery employee left the licensed premises up to the time of the 
request. (h) If a licensed retailer's delivery employee does not have any delivery requests to 
be performed for a 30-minute period, the licensed retailer's delivery employee shall not 
make any additional deliveries and shall return to the licensed premises. Required meal 
breaks shall not count toward the 30-minute period. (i) Upon returning to the licensed 
premises, all undelivered cannabis goods shall be returned to the licensed retailer’s 
inventory and recorded within the track and trace system in accordance with section 
15049.3. Authority cited: Section 26013, Business and Professions Code. Reference: 
Sections 26067, 26068, 26070, 26090 and 26160, Business and Professions Code.  

§15419. Cannabis Consumption During Delivery. A licensed retailer’s delivery
employees shall not consume cannabis or cannabis products while delivering cannabis 
goods to customers. Authority cited: Section 26013, Business and Professions Code. 
Reference: Sections 26070 and 26090, Business and Professions Code. Medicinal and Adult 
Use Cannabis Regulations Revised April 1, 2025 120  

§15420. Delivery Request Receipt. A licensed retailer shall prepare a hard copy or
electronic delivery request receipt for each delivery of cannabis goods. (a) The delivery 
request receipt shall contain the following: (1) The legal business name and license number 
of the licensed retailer; (2) The first name and employee number of the licensed retailer's 
delivery employee who delivered the order; (3) The first name and employee number of the 
licensed retailer's employee who prepared the order for delivery; (4) The first name of the 
customer and a licensed retailer-assigned customer number for the person who requested 
the delivery; (5) The date and time the delivery request was made; (6) The delivery address; 
(7) A detailed description of all cannabis goods requested for delivery. The description shall
include the weight, volume, or any other accurate measure of the amount of all cannabis
goods requested; (8) The total amount paid for the delivery, including any taxes or fees, the
cost of the cannabis goods, and any other charges related to the delivery; and (9) Upon



delivery, the date and time the delivery was made, and the handwritten or electronic 
signature of the customer who received the delivery. (b) At the time of the delivery, the 
delivery employee of the retailer shall provide the customer who placed the order with a hard 
or electronic copy of the delivery request receipt. The delivery employee shall retain a hard 
or electronic copy of the signed delivery request receipt for the licensed retailer's records. 
(c) For the purposes of this section, an employee number is a distinct number assigned by a
licensed retailer to an employee that would allow the licensed retailer to identify the
employee in documents or records using the employee number rather than the employee's
full name. A licensed retailer shall be able to identify the employee associated with each
employee number upon request from the Department. (d) For the purposes of this section,
a customer number is a distinct number assigned by a licensed retailer to a customer that
would allow the licensed retailer to identify the customer in documents or records using the
customer number rather than the customer's full name. A licensed retailer shall be able to
identify the customer associated with each customer number upon request from the
Department. Authority cited: Section 26013, Business and Professions Code. Reference:
Sections 26070, 26090 and 26160, Business and Professions Code. Medicinal and Adult Use
Cannabis Regulations Revised April 1, 2025 121

§15421. Delivery Route. While making deliveries of cannabis goods, a licensed
retailer's delivery employee shall only travel from the retailer's licensed premises to the 
delivery address; from one delivery address to another delivery address; or from a delivery 
address back to the retailer's licensed premises. A delivery employee of a licensed retailer 
shall not deviate from the delivery path described in this section, except for necessary rest, 
fuel, or vehicle repair stops, or because road conditions make continued use of the route 
unsafe, impossible, or impracticable. Authority cited: Section 26013, Business and 
Professions Code. Reference: Sections 26070 and 26090, Business and Professions Code. 



 H o l l y  M y e r s   2 1 1  W  S y c a m o r e  S t r e e t     W i l l o w s ,  C A   9 5 9 8 8      530 934-3664 

July 30, 2025 

City of Willows 
Willows Planning Commission 
201 N Lassen Street 
Willows, CA  95988 

Dear Commissioners, 

Will you allow a business in Central Commercial District to operate that has the potential to 
destroy the lives of our children, our community standards and the desire to invest in our 
community?    

It is evident that we currently face scarcity of business development, affordable housing, access 
to medical services and activities for our youth.  Allowing an overabundance of liquor stores, 
marijuana dispensaries and smoke shops provides insight into the town’s social fabric, economic 
conditions and community values.  They also contribute to the physical and mental health 
outcomes of our community. 

This kind of desperate development and modified planning is not about creating spaces and 
places that benefit our community. It only contributes to the disinvestment and inability to 
attract land and housing development, major retail developers and small businesses.  

In the year 2022 the city conducted a community survey.  The survey asked the question as to 
what problems do you think the city is facing and an overwhelming percent of respondents  said 
that there was a lack of activities for our youth.  As the number one answer, it rated as an 
extremely serious problem. 

So why are we inundating our community with liquor stores, dispensaries and smoke shops 
(drugs and alcohol).  We should be focusing on better development, niche shopping, swimming 
pools, parks, bike paths and areas to host events and youth activities. 

In California, cannabis businesses are required to maintain a distance of 600 ft from any K-12 
school.  Additionally, cannabis businesses cannot advertise or market cannabis products within 
1,000 ft of any K-12 school.  These regulations are in place to protect minors and minimize the 
risk of accidental exposure to cannabis products and the influence of cannabis culture. 

Keep in mind, that our city council in a time of desperation, directed by nonresident city 
employees made the decision to lower the standards set forth in our municipal code to allow this 
use in our Central Commercial District.  The very place we gather with our family and children 
for events. (Lamb Derby, Winter Walk, Light Parade/Winter Wonderland and Homecoming 
Parade) 

No one should profit at the detriment of our community and I encourage you to VOTE NO on 
this use. 

Sincerely, 

Holly Myers 









Agenda Item #6b 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

Date: August 5, 2025  

To: Planning Commission 

From: Delanie Garlick, Harris & Associates  

Joe Bettencourt, Community Development & Service Director 

Subject: WWCRS, Inc./ Conditional Use Permit (File# CUP 25-02) /130 N. Butte St 

Recommendation: 
Receive the staff report, attachments, discuss, and upon conclusion, consider approving the request for 
a Conditional Use Permit and adopting the attached resolution.  

Rationale for Recommendation: 
This matter is before the Planning Commission pursuant to City of Willows Municipal Code (WMC) 
Chapter 9.20, Cannabis. 

Background & Process: 
City of Willows Cannabis Ordinance was recently amended to allow cannabis retail/dispensary 
businesses in the Central Commercial, General Commercial, and Light Industrial Zones with approval of 
a Conditional Use Permit (CUP). Previously, Cannabis retail businesses were not permitted in these 
zones. In May 2024, the new amendments to the ordinance reduced the setback requirements from 
schools to 600 feet and removed all setback requirements from churches, licensed daycares, 
playgrounds, and parks.  

The application process for a retail/dispensary cannabis business license consists of three phases: 
a. Preliminary application intended to confirm the eligibility and suitability of the applicant(s), as

determined in the sole discretion of the City of Willows (referred to as phase one);
b. Review of significant information about the proposed site of the business, proposed operations,

security and other detailed business operations (referred to as phase two); and
c. Final consideration and approval or disapproval by City Council (referred to as phase three).

If the city manager determines that phase one of the application is complete, and there appears to be 
no basis for denial of the permit, the city manager shall notify the applicant that it may continue to phase 
two in the application process. When the city manager has notified the applicant that the phase two 
application is accepted, the applicant shall apply for a CUP to be reviewed and decided by the Planning 
Commission. Lastly, when the city manager determines that phase two is complete, including the 

https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/Willows/#!/Willows09/Willows0920.html
https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/Willows/#!/Willows09/Willows0920.html


issuance of a CUP, the application shall be placed on the next available meeting agenda of the City 
Council. 

On March 21, 2025, phase one of the application process for the applicant, WWCRS, Inc., was deemed 
complete by City of Willows, and the applicant was given directions to proceed to phase two (Attachment 
3). Phase two of the application process includes the request for a CUP to meet Zoning Code Compliance 
as outlined in WMC 9.20.071(2, (a)viii)). The CUP includes the required findings as outlined in WMC 
18.135.050 as well as the standards and conditions found in WMC 9.20.080. The general conditions for 
retail/dispensary cannabis licenses are incorporated into the Conditions of Approval (Attachment 2).  

Discussion & Analysis: 
The applicant, WWCRS, Inc., is requesting a CUP as part of the phase two application process to operate 
a commercial retail cannabis dispensary in an existing 1,803 square foot building at 130 N. Butte Street, 
Suite AB in the Willow Walk Mall located within a Central Commercial zoning district. The Central 
Commercial district conditionally allows cannabis retail/dispensary business with a use permit pursuant 
to WMC Section 18.55.030(20) and pursuant to the development standards outlined in WMC Section 
9.20.070 to 9.20.080, as defined in WMC Section 8.10.010. In addition to on-site sales, WWCRS, Inc. will 
offer delivery of cannabis products in full compliance with all applicable state and local regulations. 

Table 1: Site Information 
Present Use & Development Vacant commercial tenant space within the existing Willow Walk Mall 
Access & Parking Direct access via Sycamore Street to the south and Butte Street to the 

West. 
The existing parking lot provides on-site parking, additionally there is on-
street parking along Butte Street, adjacent to the project site.  

Surrounding Use/Zoning North – Central Commercial (CG), parking lot then commercial businesses 
East – Central Commercial (CG), Butte Street then commercial businesses 
West – Central Commercial (CG), parking lot then commercial businesses 
South – Central Commercial (CG), parking lot then Sycamore Street  

Figure 1: Site and surrounding zoning 



The proposed location is within the appropriate zone district, Central Commercial, which conditionally 
allows a cannabis retail/dispensary. Additionally, the location of the business meets the setback 
regulations per Ordinance 760-2024, which took effect on February 12, 2025. The operator 
demonstrates compliance with the general provisions outline WMC 9.20.080 including but not limited 
to hours of operations, odor control measures, security measures, labeling and packaging, inspections, 
limits on sales, maintenance of licenses and insurance, and accounting of sales. 

The applicant provided all necessary application materials as detailed in the Cannabis Retail/Dispensary 
Phase Two Application Checklist including a detailed security plan, site plan, floor plan, accessibility 
evaluation, zoning code compliance, and demonstration of experience in the industry. Also included in 
the application package are sixteen (16) letters of support for the location and operation of this cannabis 
retail/dispensary. The application materials demonstrate the applicant has met the provisions of the 
zoning compliance for a use permit to operate a cannabis retail/dispensary in the City of Willows (COA 
Attachment 1).  

Consistency Review: 
The proposed project is compatible with the surrounding existing and future land uses of the Central 
Commercial district, consistent with General Plan Policy LU-2a. The request for a CUP is consistent with 
policy LU-2f & LU-7a because it meets the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) and other applicable laws via categorical exemption 15301 (Existing Facilities). The proposed 
retail/dispensary will generate several full and part-time jobs in the Central Commercial district which 
meets the goals of policy LU 4.2 to support the continued development and intensification of 
employment opportunities throughout all non-residential areas. 

The proposed CUP for a cannabis retail/dispensary meets a number of the City Council’s 2024 priorities 
and goals. The council recognizes that new revenue is urgently needed to support essential services, 
infrastructure investments, and future development. This project meets Priority Goal #1 for financial 
stability by promoting investment and increased revenue through sales tax. The project also meets 
priority #2 for Economic Development as it is a new development within the city, it has the potential to 
contribute to economic growth. By creating jobs and attracting new businesses, the project can play a 
significant role in contributing to the local economy through sales tax revenue and fostering a vibrant 
and diverse economy to help overcome economic stagnation and competition from other communities. 
Lastly, the proposed CUP is consistent with Priority #4 by encouraging community engagement as the 
project would offer an opportunity for public input and engagement, allowing residents to share their 
thoughts and concerns during a public hearing. Collaborating with local businesses and organizations can 
drive economic activity and foster a stronger sense of community. 

Environmental Review: 
The project is categorically exempt from the preparation of environmental documentation under the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Guidelines Section 15301 (Existing Facilities). 
The project is consistent with General Plan policies for the land use designation and is consistent with 



the applicable zoning designation and regulations. The project consists of the operation of a commercial 
business in an existing structure. The project site is not on a list of hazardous waste sites and does not 
contain a significant historical resource. The project site is an existing developed property served by 
required utilities and public services.  

Attachments: 
 Attachment 1: Resolution XX-2025
 Attachment 2: Conditions of Approval
 Attachment 3: Phase 1 Approval Letter
 Attachment 4: Cannabis Delivery Information



Attachment 1 

City of Willows  
Resolution XX-2025 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILLOWS GRANTING CONDITIONAL 
USE PERMIT APPROVAL OF A NEW RETAIL / DISPENSARY CANNABIS BUSINESS LICENSE (CUP 25-02) 

TO WWCRS, Inc. FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 130 N BUTTE STREET, ASSESSORS PARCEL NUMBER 
003-044-005 WITHIN THE CENTRAL COMMERCIAL ZONE

WHEREAS, the applicant, WWCRS, Inc., has submitted an application for Conditional Use Permit 
approval to allow the operation of a new retail / dispensary cannabis business license; and  

WHEREAS, City of Willows Municipal Code Chapter 18.55.030 requires approval of a Conditional 
Use Permit for the operation of a cannabis retail / dispensary business; and   

WHEREAS, City of Willows Municipal Code Chapter 9.20.070 – 9.20.080 establishes processes 
and general conditions for retail / dispensary cannabis business licenses; and  

WHEREAS, notice of the Planning Commission meeting held on August 5, 2025, was published in 
a newspaper of general circulation in the City in accordance with law, and mailing to property owners 
within 300 feet were sent; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission did, on August 5, 2025, hold a public hearing to consider all 
public oral and written comments, letters and documents, staff reports, and all other documents and 
evidence which are a part of the Record; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission does find that the proposed project qualifies as a 
Categorical Exemption under Section 15301 (Class 1) pursuant to the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Willows Municipal Code Chapter 18.135.050, the following findings are 
made for the approval of a use permit:  

1) That the use is consistent with the purposes of the district in which the site is located.
Willows Municipal Code (WMC) Chapter 18.55.030(20) allows for cannabis retail /
dispensary business within the Central Commercial zone with approval of a conditional
use permit.

2) That the proposed location of the use and the conditions under which it may be operated
or maintained will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare or materially
injurious to properties or improvements in the vicinity.
The location of the cannabis retail / dispensary business would be in an existing
commercial building. Minor tenant improvements would be required. Conditions of
Approval outlined in WMC Chapter 9.20.080 including hours of operation, odor control
and security measures would be included in the project to ensure the business is operated



and maintained in a manner that is not detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare 
of those in the vicinity.  

3) That the proposed use is in conformance with the General Plan.
Commercial businesses are allowed within the land use designation of Central
Commercial.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission of the City of Willows does 
hereby find that the Conditional Use Permit to allow the operation of a retail / dispensary cannabis 
business license is consistent with the City of Willows Municipal Code and General Plan, and findings 
incorporated, and hereby approves Conditional Use Permit #CUP 25-02, subject to the attached 
conditions of approval. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Planning Commission of the City of Willows this 5th day of August 2025, 
by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

APPROVED: ATTESTED: 

Sherry Brott, Chair  Karleen Price, City Clerk 



Attachment 2 

Conditions of Approval 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP 25-02)  

 For Retail / Dispensary Cannabis Business License 
130 N Butte Street /APN: 003-044-005 

Planning Commission Approval Date: August 5, 2025 

GENERAL 
(1) This Conditional Use Permit (CUP 25-02) allows for the operation of a cannabis retail / dispensary

cannabis business (Storefront Retailer). Storefront Retailer is defined as a licensee that owns or
operates a physical location where cannabis goods are sold directly to consumers. Storefront
retailers may also provide delivery services under the same license. the required license for a
Storefront Retailer is a Type 10 – Storefront Retailer (walk-in dispensary, with optional delivery)
license issued by the State of California. Any future proposal for Storefront Retailer related use,
such as delivery shall be subject to separate review and approval in accordance with applicable
zoning, licensing, and regulatory requirements.

(2) Prior to commencing business operations pursuant to a cannabis retail/dispensary business
license issued by the city of Willows, the applicant shall hold a certificate of authorization issued
by the City of Willows. Certificates of authorization shall be issued only to applicants who hold (a)
a retail/dispensary cannabis sales license issued by the City of Willows, (b) a use permit issued by
the city of Willows planning commission, and (c) California state-issued Type 10- Storefront
Retailer license.

(3) In the event of any conflict between the Conditions of Approval for CUP 25-02 and the State of
California (State) regulations, these Conditions of Approval shall prevail to the maximum extent
of the City’s legal authority; any provision for which the City lacks such authority shall defer to the
applicable State of California regulation.

(4) Where any system is referenced in Attachment 1 (Application Materials), the applicant shall install 
and use that system, and no deviation shall occur unless the City Manager authorizes a written
exemption. The installed system shall match make/model, specifications, design and other details
as described in Attachment 1. This includes but is not limited security systems, age verification
systems, lighting systems, odor control systems, tracking systems labeling and packaging
requirements, building plans and specifications and any other system as described in Attachment
1.

(5) Hours of Operation. All permitted Storefront Retailer business premises shall be closed to the
general public, including deliveries, shall be prohibited between the hours of 7:00 p.m. and 8:00
a.m. Transporter deliveries and pick-ups shall be prohibited between the hours of 7:00 p.m. and
8:00 a.m.

(6) Odor Control. Odors shall be contained on the property on which the commercial cannabis activity 
is located. If the city receives any odor complaints, the cannabis business shall work with the
building official or his designee to correct odor concerns. Unresolved or repeated odor complaints 
may be basis for suspension or revocation of the license or denial of license renewal.



 

(7) Business Conducted within Building. No production, distribution, storage, display or wholesale of 
cannabis and cannabis-infused products shall be visible from the exterior of the building where 
the commercial cannabis activity is being conducted. 

 
(8) Security Measures. Maintain a commercial alarm monitoring system and video surveillance 

system in accordance with local, state and federal regulations. 
 

(9) Security Breach. A cannabis business shall notify the city and the Glenn County sheriff’s office 
within 24 hours after discovering any of the following: 
 

a. Diversion, theft, loss, or any criminal activity involving the cannabis or cannabis product 
or any agent or employee of the permittee. 

b. The loss or unauthorized alteration of records related to cannabis or cannabis product, 
registered qualifying patients, primary caregivers or employees or agents. 

c. Significant discrepancies identified during inventory. 
d. Any other material breach of security. 

 
(10) Labeling and Packages. Labels and packages of cannabis and cannabis products shall meet all state 

and federal labeling and packaging requirements. 
 

(11) Inspection Records. Inspections, if necessary, shall take place at a reasonable time with prior 
notice to the cannabis business. Notwithstanding the foregoing, upon reasonable suspicion of a 
material violation of the law or the provisions of this code or the conditions of a license, 
inspections may be made at any time, with or without prior notice. Upon request, the cannabis 
business shall timely provide the city official with reports and records related to the business 
including, but not limited to, sales reports, utility bills from the commercial energy provider for 
the premises. This section shall not limit any inspection authorized under any other provision of 
law or regulation. 

 
(12) In addition to a retail/dispensary cannabis business license, obtain and maintain a business license 

from the City of Willows. 
 

(13) Maintain at all times commercial general liability insurance providing coverage at least as broad 
as ISO CGL Form 00 01 on an occurrence basis for bodily injury, including death, of one or more 
persons, property damage and personal injury with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence and comprehensive automobile liability (owned, nonowned, hired) providing 
coverage at least as broad as ISO Form CA 00 01 on an occurrence basis for bodily injury, including 
death, of one or more persons, property damage and personal injury, with limits of not less than 
$1,000,000. The commercial general liability policy shall provide contractual liability, shall include 
a severability of interest or equivalent wording, shall specify that insurance coverage afforded to 
the city shall be primary, and shall name the city of Willows, its officials, employees and attorneys 
as additional insured. Failure to maintain insurance as required herein at all times shall be grounds 
for suspension of the license immediately, and ultimately, revocation. 
 

(14) By accepting the license, each licensee agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless to the 
fullest extent permitted by law the city of Willows, its officers, employees, attorneys, agents and 



 

consultants from and against any and all actual and alleged damages, claims, liabilities, costs 
(including attorney’s fees), suits or other expenses resulting from and arising out of or in 
connection with licensee’s operations, except such liability caused by the gross negligence or 
willful misconduct of city of Willows, its officers, employees, attorneys, agents and consultants. 

 
(15) Maintain for a minimum of three years a written accounting or ledger of all cash, receipts, credit 

card and other financial transactions, and reimbursements (including any in-kind contributions) 
as well as records of all operational expenditures and costs incurred by the licensee in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting practices and standards typically applicable to business 
records, which shall be made available to the city, its auditors or consultants during business hours 
for inspection upon reasonable notice by the city manager and for purposes of audit. 

 
(16) Inform the city manager, in writing, of any change of or to any of the information submitted to 

the city in phase one and phase two applications, any renewal application, or any amendments 
thereto, within 10 days of any such change including, but not limited to, any change in ownership 
of five percent or more in a single transaction or cumulatively. 

 
(17) Notify the city manager within three days of any notices of violations or other corrective action 

ordered by a state or other local licensing authority and provide copies of the relevant documents. 
[Ord. 745-19 § 6, 7-9-19; Ord. 736-17 § 7 (Exh. B), 11-28-17]. 
 

(18) Cannabis businesses that sell or manufacture edible cannabis products shall have a valid Glenn 
County health permit. Permit holders shall comply with Health and Safety Code Section 13700 et 
seq., and Glenn County Health Department permit requirements. 

 
(19) Drive-through or walk-up window services are prohibited at all retail/dispensary cannabis 

establishments in the City of Willows. 
 

(20) An application for renewal of a retail/dispensary cannabis business license, together with all 
applicable fees, must be submitted to the city manager at least 90 days before the expiration of 
the then-current license. Failure to submit a renewal application at least 90 days prior to the 
expiration date of the then-current license will result in the automatic expiration of the license on 
the expiration date. 
 

(21) A retail/dispensary cannabis business license is nontransferable to another person, entity or 
location, and no such transfer may be made except in accordance with this section. Any such 
transfer made without the prior consent of the city of Willows shall result in the revocation of the 
license. Any change in ownership of five percent or more, singly or cumulatively, shall be 
considered a “change in ownership” and constitute a “transfer” for purposes of this section. 
 

(22) Whenever an enforcement officer has reason to believe that a nuisance exists or that an 
inspection is necessary to enforce any provision of this chapter, the officer may enter the premises 
at any reasonable time to perform the inspection or any other duty imposed by this title. The 
enforcement officer shall provide reasonable notice of the need to enter and inspect. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event there is reasonable suspicion of the existence of a 
nuisance or violation that presents an immediate or imminent danger to the health, safety or 
welfare of the employees of licensee, its customers or the community at large, the enforcement 
officer or other city official may enter the premises at any time without notice. 



 

 
a. The enforcement officer shall present proper identification, state the purpose of the visit 

and request permission of the owner or responsible person to enter the premises. If entry 
is refused, the enforcement officer shall have recourse to every remedy provided by law 
to secure entry. Any such refusal shall be grounds for suspension of the licensee’s license. 

b. When the enforcement officer has first obtained a proper inspection warrant or other 
remedy provided by law to secure entry, no owner or responsible person shall fail or 
neglect, after proper request is made as provided in this title, to promptly permit entry 
therein by the enforcement officer for the purpose of inspection and examination 
pursuant to this title. [Ord. 736-17 § 7 (Exh. B), 11-28-17] 

 
(23) Electronic age verification will be utilized to verify the age and identity of any individuals 

purchasing cannabis goods. Cannabis will not be sold to the public without electronic age 
verification. Licensees shall ensure that no person less than 21 years of age is permitted to work 
as an employee of the Storefront Retailer. 

 
(24) Cannabis goods will only be received by the customer. 

 
(25) On-site consumption of cannabis is prohibited at all times by all individuals on the property. 

 
(26) No cannabis or cannabis products or graphics depicting cannabis or cannabis products will be 

visible from the exterior of the business premises, or on any vehicles owned or used as part of the 
business. 

 
(27) The front entrance of the dispensary will have a secure lobby and no products will be visible within 

this area. 
 

(28) The entrance will maintain clear and legible notice, visibly posted stating that smoking, ingesting, 
or otherwise consuming cannabis on the premises or in the areas adjacent to the commercial 
cannabis business is prohibited. No loitering signage will be posted. All signage for the facility will 
be submitted to the City of Willows for review including but not limited to signs required by local, 
state and federal regulations, identifying signs and all additional signs visible to the public. 

 
(29) The business, operator, or employees will not provide free cannabis or cannabis products to any 

person and will abide by legal sales limits set by the Department of Cannabis Control. 
 
(30) A current copy of the commercial cannabis business permit issued by the City and the State license 

will be posted inside the business premises in a location readily visible. 
 

(31) That the applicant/developer shall enter into a Pass-Through Agreement with the City of Willows 
to pay the cost of all planning review, plan checking and field inspection of this project. 

 
(32) If the use is not made on the project subject to the permit within one (1) year after the date of 

granting the permit, then without further action, the permit shall be null and void, and such use 
shall not be made of the property except upon the granting of a new permit. 
 

(33) All plans for additional uses, which are not covered by this review, shall be submitted to the City 
Manager and Planning Commission for review and approval prior to use. 



 

 
(34) All landscaping shall be maintained in good condition and any dead or dying plants, bushes, or 

trees shall be replaced with new healthy stock of a size compatible with the remainder of the 
growth at the time of replacement. 
 

(35)  The approval of this project shall be subject to the latest adopted Ordinances, Resolutions, 
Policies and fees of the City of Willows and all state regulations 
 

(36) All contractors/sub-contractors doing work on the project shall obtain a City business license prior 
to commencing operation. Facility shall operate in accordance with local laws. 
 

(37) Changes in hours, days, or operating procedures must be reported to the Community 
Development Department. 

 
BUILDING DEPARTMENT 

(38) If you intend to construct, enlarge, alter, repair, move, demolish, or change the occupancy of the 
building or structure or to erect, install, alter, repair, remove, convert, or replace any electrical, 
gas, mechanical or plumbing system, the installation of which is regulated by code, or to cause 
any such work to be done, you shall first make application for a building permit and obtain the 
required permit for the development. 
 

(39) Applicant shall submit a completed building permit application with detailed scope of work, 3 
complete sets of plans, calculations, specifications, etc. for review. Appropriate plan review fees 
shall be paid at the time of submittal. 

 
(40) All work shall comply with current applicable Federal, State, local building codes and ordinances 

and be shown on the plans submitted for building permit review. 
 

(41) Conditions of approval shall be shown on the plans submitted for building permit review. 
 

(42) Prior to issuance of a Building Permit for the construction of any structures on the site, a Final 
Lighting Plan shall be submitted to the City and reviewed by the Engineer. The final lighting plan 
shall include, but not limited to the following: (a) details regarding exterior lighting with lighting 
sources that are full cut-off, hooded, and down-cast, or otherwise shielded to ensure that light 
does adversely shine towards neighboring properties or toward the night sky, (b) lighting sources 
with the minimum wattage necessary to provide adequate security without causing excessively 
bright night glow, (c) sufficient details regarding the proposed wattage and area of coverage for 
all site lights. 

 
FIRE DEPARTMENT 

(43) All fire and security alarm systems must meet the approval of the Fire Chief per WMC Chapter 
15.15. 

(44) The Site shall be equipped with a Knox box holding a master key per WMC Chapter 15.15. 
 

(45) Fire extinguishers shall be provided in accordance with the latest CFC. 
 



 

(46) The building address shall meet all WMC Chapter 15.15. criteria and be reviewed and approved 
by the Fire Department prior to installation. An illuminated address sign shall be provided for the 
property. 

 
(47) Provide illuminated exit signs over all exit doors in accordance with the latest CBC and CFC. 

 
(48) All exit doors shall have no knowledge door locks, be posted “this door to remain unlocked when 

building occupied” and swing in the direction of exit travel. 
 

(49) All utility rooms will need to be identified by signage. 
 

(50) A Pre-Fire Plan and Inspection will need to be completed before occupancy of the building. 
 

(51) Regular Fire Department safety inspections shall occur annually. 
 
GLENN COUNTY ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH DEPARTMENT 

(52) The applicant will need to plan check and obtain health/food permits from the Glenn County 
Environmental Health Department. A copy of the permits shall be provided to the City as well as 
renewals and any non-compliance issues 
 

PUBLIC WORKS/ENGINEERING 
(53) The proposed modification of the parking area and sidewalks fronting the building requires an 

encroachment permit.  The permit shall be obtained through the City prior to any work on City 
property and all work shall be completed prior to commencement of business for this project. 

 
(54) All improvements proposed with the new accessible parking space shall meet current ADA 

standards and provide for accessible paths of travel from the new proposed accessible parking 
space to the front entrance and exit doors.  Existing asphalt in the accessible parking space area 
shall be removed and replaced.  Improvement plans for the new accessible parking space, 
landscape areas and sidewalk improvements shall be included on improvements plans submitted 
for this project.  The improvement plans shall include sufficient topographic information (spot 
elevation grades of existing and proposed improvements) and shall show existing and proposed 
improvements.  Additional site improvements (drainage, etc.) may be required, depending on the 
proposed improvements. 
 

(55) The proposed new landscape areas adjacent to the new accessible parking stall shall be detailed 
on any plans submitted as part of this project and the encroachment permit.  If the area is 
proposed to be irrigated, plans submitted for review shall include landscape and irrigation plans.  
Depending on the location of the water source for irrigation, additional improvements may be  
required. 
 

(56) All existing adjacent sidewalk adjacent to and involved in upgrading the parking area that 
currently cracked, damaged or displaced shall be removed and replaced as part of this project.  
Sidewalk and parking space modifications shall be detailed on plans and shall be submitted for 
review and approval by the City.  All sidewalk improvements shall be per City Standards. 

 
 



JBettencourt
Text Box
Phase 1 Application

JBettencourt
Text Box

JBettencourt
Text Box












































	8-05-2025 PC Agenda Face.pdf
	Public Comment & Consent Calendar Forum
	07-01-2025 Draft Meeting Minutes
	Public Hearing
	1. CUP 25-01 Staff Report_06242025
	2. Attachment 1_Resolution _CUP25-01
	3. Attachment 2 _COAs_CUP25-01 DRAFT
	3.1 COA ATTACHMENT 1 Final
	Phase 1 Application .pdf
	Phase 2 Application .pdf
	Cali Love  Cannabis Delivery Service.pdf
	Phase 2 Application 1st follow-up questions and responses compressed.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	4. Cali Love Willows LLC- Approval of Phase 1 Cannabis Business License Application
	5. Attachment 4 Delivery Information Final
	MYERS - PUBLIC COMMENT
	Santa Rosa Chruch- Public Comment
	1. CUP 25-02 Staff Report_06262025
	2. Attachment 1_Resolution _CUP25-02 Revised
	3. Attachment 2 _COAs_CUP25-02 DRAFT
	3.1 ATTACHMENT 1 to COAs COMBINED
	Blank Page




